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( ) )
31,178,744.65 54.53
9,028,349.38 15.79
8,173,945.27 14.30
4,845,946.19 8.48
4,595,039.26 8.04
57,822,024.75 101.13
« ) -644,382.05 -1.13
( , 57,177,642.70 100,00
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)

AHL (Cayman) SPC -
Class A Evolution
) 4,146,968.91 1.02| 4,226,590.71 2.5173| 10,439,164.83 18.26
Segregated Portfolio -

Class Al Evolution USD

Tewksbury Investment

304.93 13,535.94| 4,127,577.63 29,607.47| 9,028,349.38 15.79
Fund Ltd. - Class B

Systematica Alternative
Markets Fund Limited - 36,895.04 152.20| 5,615,431.44 187.99| 6,935,903.25 12.13
Class A USD

Two Sigma Spectrum
Cayman Fund, Ltd. -
A 1,344.29 3,906.58| 5,251,564.00 4,095.42| 5,505,425.78 9.63
Class A2 Series

Benchmark 3

Two Sigma Compass
Enhanced Cayman Fund,
Ltd - Class Al
Benchmark Series

967.22 3,831.89| 3,706,275.84 5,662.03| 5,476,424.41 9.58

FORT Global UCITS Funds
P.L.C. - FORT Global
UCITS Contrarian Fund -
USD Class

3,660.54 1,059.18| 3,877,170.76 1,255.29| 4,595,039.26 8.04

Crabel Fund SPC, Ltd. -
Class A - Fee 2 - 3,514.17 1,000.00| 3,514,173.50 1,208.88| 4,248,229.24 7.43
Series 95

Transtrend Fund
Alliance SICAV -
OmniTrend (USD) - Class
usb - USD

1,447.86 2,008.74| 2,908,365.70 2,928.72| 4,240,376.08 7.42

Man AHL Trend
Alternative - Class IN 25,067.35 155.85| 3,906,747.12 156.92| 3,933,569.19 6.88
USD Acc

Two Sigma Absolute

Return Macro Enhanced
Cayman Fund, Ltd. - 2,264.88 1,000.00| 2,264,876.90 1,245.91| 2,821,826.38 4.94
Class Al Series 1

Benchmark

Crabel Fund SPC, Ltd. -
Class A - Fee 2 - 511.62 1,000.00 511,617.90 1,168.29 597,716.95 1.05
Series 231

11

11
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154.66 153.25 -0.91
153.25 130.74 -14.69
130.74 132.52 1.36
132.52 151.04 13.98
151.04 171.11 13.29
171.11 159.54 -6.76
159.54 161.89 1.47
161.89 175.12 8.17
175.12 159.49 -8.93
159.49 173.10 8.53
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( ) ( )
139.75 138.73 -0.73
138.73 118.25 -14.76
118.25 119.80 1.31
119.80 137.19 14.52
137.19 154.52 12.63
154.52 141.52 -8.41
141.52 139.65 -1.32
139.65 146.79 5.11
146.79 130.73 -10.94
130.73 140.34 7.35
) () 100x ( )
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HSBC ( )
208,093.49 486,325.60 1,257,213.26
) ©0) (303,134.09)
98,476.61 645,224.59 710,465.28
(0.00) (180,050.83) (123,083.26)
32,585.12 320,549.33 422,501.07
(0.00) (50,657.05) (72,426.21)
4,632.66 115,618.20 311,515.53
(3,336.23) (20,479.82) (55,282.62)
0.00 52,335.62 259,179.91
(0.00) (20,367.47) (34,915.15)
8,423.72 28,575.65 239,027.98
(4,332.94) (13,645.86) (25,602.23)
12,528.14 18,704.87 232,851.25
(0.00) (5,529.80) (20,072.43)
230.40 9,052.61 224,029.04
(0.00) (4,590.11) (15,482.32)
0.00 7,606.86 216,422.18
(0.00) (2,696.63) (12,785.69)
0.00 6,136.01 210,286.17
(0.00) (2,540.68) (10,245.01)

) )
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HSBC ( )

22,105.19 78,056.42 133,957.52
0) () (2,257.38)
10,920.48 128,613.49 16,264.51
(0.00) (1,084.76) (1,172.62)
55.48 7,115.28 9,204.71
(0.00) (0.00) (1,172.62)
7.45 4,204.77 5,007.39
(0.00) (0.00) (1,172.62)
0.00 1,045.60 3,961.79
(0.00) (0.00) (1,172.62)
0.00 1,549.67 2,412.12
(0.00) (1,172.62) (0.00)
0.00 1,654.72 757.40
(0.00) (0.00) (0.00)
0.00 0.00 757.40
(0.00) (0.00) (0.00)
0.00 0.00 757.40
(0.00) (0.00) (0.00)
0.00 0.00 757.40
(0.00) (0.00) (0.00)
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31
2021 31 2020 31

57,583 6,551 51,818 5,895

58 7 4,685 533

735 84 2,984 339

793 90 7,669 873

58,376 6,641 59,487 6,768

(54) (6) (2,621) (298)

(54) (6) (2,621) (298)

58,322 6,635 56,866 6,470

HSBC
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2021 31
2021 31 2020 31
6,261 712 (3,568) (406)
- 130 15
- 24 (©)
(760) (86) (932) (106)
(760) (86) (956) (109)
5,501 626 (4,394) (500)
2021 31
2021 31 2020 31
56,866 6,470 61,222 6,965
1,148 131 3,162 360
(5,193) (591) (3,124) (355)
(4,045) (460) 38 4
5,501 626 (4,394) (500)
58,322 6,635 56,866 6,470
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2021 31 2020 31
(1,705) 4,544
7,413 (8,783)
2,305 838
(1,113) (915)
(639) 748
6,261 (3,568)
12
2021 31 2020 31
(614) (652)
@® -
(618) (652)
@n (39)
@n (39)
(28) (26)
(87) (215)
(115) (241)
(760) (932)
* *
2021 30 2021 2021 30 2021
1.65% 1.75% 0.10% - 10.00%
1.65% 1.75% 0.10% - 10.00%
0.65% 0.75% 0.10% - 10.00%
0.15% 0.15% - - 10.00%
*2021

2021 31 2020 31
614,278 - 652,054 -
26,760 - 39,247 -
4,438 4,438 . i
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31 2,509,149
**2021 31
31

12

2021 17

31 A2

**

12

2021 17

2021 26
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2021 31 2020 31

- 250

27 2,509

26 673

5 1,253

58 4,685

26,819 2020
2021 31 2020 31
735 2,984
HSBC
2021 31
2021 31 2020 31

@7 (2,509)

(11) -

- (25)

) -

12) €1)

(54) (2,621)

26,819 2020
10,833 2020
1989

1,200 2020 31 1,200
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10
2020 2021 31
216,422.18 - (6,136.01) 210,286.17
757.40 - - 757.40
9,330.48 - (4,214.43) 5,116.05
6,230.50 - (0.76) 6,229.74
906.85 - (906.85) -
84,067.92 3,866.30 (16,294.70) 71,639.52
79,928.25 5,175.75 (11,566.32) 73,537.68
8,851.25 - (2,456.23) 6,395.02
406,494.83 9,042.05 (41,575.30) 373,961.58
2019 2020 31
224,029.04 - (7,606.86) 216,422.18
757.40 - - 757.40
9,330.48 - - 9,330.48
6,543.06 - (312.56) 6,230.50
906.85 - - 906.85
88,080.12 5,920.84 (9,933.04) 84,067.92
65,968.91 19,318.48 (5,359.14) 79,928.25
8,698.05 478.71 (325.51) 8,851.25
404,313.91 25,718.03 (23,537.11) 406,494.83
2021 31 2020 31 2019 31
36,399 34,518 39,231
126 117 124
678 1,128 1,226
1,094 947 1,016
- 115 120
8,112 8,639 9,770
11,122 10,399 8,713
791 1,003 1,022
58,322 56,866 61,222
11
2021 HSBC
2021 30 HSBC C.l.
HSBC HSBC
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HSBC HSBC
C.l1. HSBC HSBC
HSBC
100
2021 HSBC
2021 30 HSBC
274 2020
25
12
2021 31 HSBC
104,109 122,967 2021 8 31
769,822 1,068,477 2021 8 31
652,409 770,586 2021 8 31
7,621 10,596 2021 8 19
7,831,335 10,869,525 2021 8 31
10,597 7,621 2021 8 31
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31 24,433

10
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26
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2020 31 HSBC

91,252 108,118 2020 30 State Street -
Bank

97,055 108,813 2020 30 State Street 6
Bank

545 612 2020 30 State Street -
Bank

5,189 6,156 2020 30 State Street -
Bank

1,427,783 1,874,508 2020 30 State Street -
Bank

5,894,595 7,755,006 2020 30 State Street (16)
Bank

50,941 41,498 2020 30 State Street @
Bank

424,965 557,922 2020 30 State Street -
Bank

128,185 157,362 2020 30 State Street 11
Bank

6,298,378 7,733,495 2020 30 State Street 534
Bank

741,614 878,689 2020 30 State Street 1
Bank

4,417 4,959 2020 30 State Street -
Bank

787,696 883,118 2020 30 State Street 51
Bank

40,730 48,323 2020 30 State Street -
Bank

37 33 2020 30 State Street -
Bank

42,110 49,957 2020 30 State Street -
Bank

655,151 861,925 2020 30 State Street (@)
Bank

47,280 62,072 2020 30 State Street -
Bank

750,757 921,821 2020 30 State Street 64
Bank

6,075 4,949 2020 30 State Street -
Bank

43,225 35,216 2020 30 State Street (©)
Bank

94,891 106,386 2020 30 State Street 6
Bank

532 598 2020 30 State Street -
Bank

5,073 6,018 2020 30 State Street -
Bank

89,296 105,801 2020 30 State Street -
Bank

673

(25

648

13
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VaR

VaR
1,000

VaR 99
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2021 31 2020 31
VaR  99% (5.93%) (6.01%)
@
()
12
©
2020 31

274 2020 31 24,433

735,071 2020 31 2,983,701

76/191



EDINETOOOO
O00oDOoO0oooooooo0oooooOo(EsLss)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2021 31 2020 31

10

HSBC
2021 31 A- 2020 31

FRS 102

FRS 102
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@)

2021 31
- 57,583 - 57,583
- 26 - 26
- 57,609 - 57,609

2020 31
- 51,818 - 51,818
- 673 - 673
- 52,491 - 52,491
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16

)
2021

11

25

31

13
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(25) - (25)

(25) - (25)

31
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2008
2020
17
18
2021
19
20
2021
2021
2021
21
22

HSBC

31

31

31

2020

HSBC

HSBC

HSBC

2007

31
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30

5,654
2021 31 2020 31
0.8433 0.8435
0.7192 0.7618
173.10 151.88

80/191



EDINETOOOO
O00oDOoO0oooooooo0oooooOo(EsLss)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

HSBC 140.34 124.14
;SBC 108.02 101.80
;SBC 132.55 115.46
;SBC 126.31 110.37
;SBC 113.25 98.26
;SBC 108.79 94.62
;SBC 104.29 91.18
26,819
2020 31 2,509,149 10,833 2020 31
2021 31 2020 31
58,306 54,357
27 2,509
an -
58,322 56,866
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HSBC
2021 31
(2020 31 :91.12%)

AHL (Cayman) SPC - Class Al Evolution USD Shares 4,146,969 10,096 17.31%

Crabel Fund SPC Ltd. - Segregated Portfolio - Series
308 550 562 0.96%

Crabel Fund SPC Ltd. - Segregated Portfolio - Series
231 512 610 1.05%

Crabel Fund SPC Ltd. - Segregated Portfolio - Series
95 3,514 4,335 7.43%
Fort Global UCITS Contrarian Fund USD Hedged 3,661 4,793 8.22%
Man AHL Trend Alt USD 25,067 4,314 7.40%

Systematica Alternative Markets Fund Ltd. - Class A
usD 36,895 6,534 11.20%
Tewksbury Investment Fund 305 9,132 15.66%
Transtrend Fund Alliance — Omnitrend (USD) 1,448 4,031 6.91%
Two Sigma Compass Enhanced Cayman Fund Ltd. 967 4,749 8.14%
Two Sigma Investment Fund Ltd. - Class A 2,265 2,952 5.06%
Two Sigma Spectrum Fund 1,344 5,475 9.39%
57,583 98.73%
739 1.27%

58,322 100.00%
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HSBC
2021 31
2021 31 2020 31 2019 31
210,286.14 216,422.18 224,029.04
757.40 757.40 757.40
- 906.85 906.85
5,116.05 9,330.48 9,330.48
6,229.75 6,230.50 6,543.06
71,639.52 84,067.92 88,080.12
73,537.68 79,928.25 65,968.91
6,395.02 8,851.25 8,698.05
173.10 159.49 175.12
140.34 130.73 146.79
- 106.93 118.78
132.55 120.93 131.38
126.31 115.80 127.69
113.25 102.76 110.93
108.79 99.12 108.61
104.29 95.63 105.38
36,399 34,518 39,231
106 99 111
- 97 108
678 1,128 1,226
787 721 835
8,112 8,639 9,770
) 7,935 7,922 7,165

667 846 917
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HSBC
2021 31
2021 31 2020 31
100.00% 100.00%
100.00% 100.00%
2021 31 2020 31
89.40% 90.30%
9.40% 6.20%
1.20% 3.50%

100.00% 100.00%
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HSBC
*
2021 31
Two Sigma Spectrum Fund 502 1,990
Tewksbury Investments Fund 78 1,985
AHL (Cayman) SPC - Class Al Evolution USD Shares 377,423 800
Systematica Alternative Markets Fund Ltd. - Class A USD 4,147 600
Crabel Fund SPC Ltd. 550 550
Man AHL Trend Alt USD 2,564 400
AHL Evolution Frontier Fund 2,197,502 2,459
Two Sigma Investment Fund Ltd. - Class A 993 1,100
Two Sigma Compass Enhanced Cayman Fund Ltd. 190 864
Man AHL Trend Alt USD 3,993 650
Systematica Alternative Markets Fund Ltd. - Class A USD 2,991 500
Crabel Fund SPC Ltd. - Segregated Portfolio - Series 95 284 350
Transtrend Fund Alliance — Omnitrend (USD) 115 300

2021 7 31
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HSBC
2021 31
2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
HSBC
8.53%  (8.93)% 8.17% 1.47%  (6.76)%
3 LIBOR 3.5% 3.82% 5.47% 6.26% 5.43% 4.63%
HSBC
7.35%  (10.94)% 5.11%  (1.32)%  (8.41)%
3 LIBOR 3.5% 3.04% 3.21% 3.23% 3.21% 3.27%
HSBC
o - (9.98)% 6.12% 0.17%  (8.03)%
3 LIBOR 3.5% 3.21% 3.23% 3.21% 3.27%
HSBC
9.61%  (7.95)% 9.20% 2.53%  (5.88)%
3 LIBOR 3.5% 3.82% 5.47% 6.26% 5.43% 4.63%
HSBC
9.08%  (9.31)% 7.24% 0.92%  (6.80)%
3 LIBOR 3.5 3.66% 4.31% 4.45% 4.12% 4.03%
HSBC
10.21%  (7.37)% 9.81% 3.12%
3 LIBOR 3.5% 3.82% 5.47% 6.26% 5.43% 4.63%
HSBC
9.76%  (8.74)% 7.87% 1.65%
3 LIBOR 3.5% 3.66% 4.31% 4.45% 4.12% 4.03%
HSBC
* 9.06%  (9.25)% 6.55% 0.54%
3 LIBOR 3.5% 3.04% 3.21% 3.23% 3.21% 3.27%
2017 31

2021
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

As at As at
31 July 2021 31 July 2020

Motes US5'000 US5000 US§'000 UE3000
Assets:
Current Assets
Portfolic of Investments 57.583 51,818
Debtors 4] 58 4,685
Cash and cash equivalents T T35 2984

Ta3 7.E60

Total assels 58,3786 59,487
Liabilities:
Crediors. amounts falling due within one year & [54) (2.621)
Total liabilities (54} (2,621}
Met assets attributable to the unithelders of the
Fund 23 58,322 56 BES

The consolidated financlal siaterments were approved by the Manager, HSBC Management (Suemsey) Limited on
22 November 2021 and were signed on its behalf by:

Director
For and on behalf of HSBC Management
{Guemsey) Limited

Director
For and on behall of HSBC Managemant
{Guemsey) Limited

The notes on pages 14 to 28 form an integral part of these Consalidated Financial Stalements.

HEBC Trading AdvantEdge Fund | Annual Repord and Audiled Consalidated Financial Statements 2021 13
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Consolidated Statement of Total Return

MNoles
Inceme:
Het capital gains/{losses) 3
Caher income
Finance costs: Interast
Operating expenses 4

Net axpenses

Change In net assets attributable to the unithalders of
the Fund from investmant activities

All results derive from continuing operations,

Year ended
31 July 2021

US$000  USS000

8,261

{780}

(760)

5,501

Year ended
31 July 2020
Us3000 Us$000

(3,368}
130

(24)
(932)

(955)

(4,304}

The Fund has no items of other comprehensive income and therefore the change in nel assels atiributable to the
unitholders of the Fund reflects the total comprehensive income for the year,

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Net Assets
Attributable to the Unitholders of the Fund

Year ended Year ended
1 July 2021 M July 2020
US$'000 USS000  USS000 US$'000
Mot assets attributable to the unitholders of the Fund
at the start of the year 56 868 81,222
Movemant due to issue and redemption of redeemable participating wnits:
Amounts receivedireceivable on issues 1,148 3182
Less: amounts paxdipayable on redemplions {6,193} {3.124)
{4,045) k]
Change in net assets attributable to the unithelders
of the Fund frem investment activities 5,501 [4,394)
Mat assets attributable to the unitholders of the Fund
at the end of the year 58,322 56,966
The notes on pages 14 1o 28 form an integral part of these Consolidated Financial Statements.
HEBC Trading AdvantEdge Fund | Annual Repor and Audiled Consalidated Financial Statements 2021 12
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

1 Structure of the Fund

HSBC Trading AdvanEdge Fund (the “Trust”) is a sub-fund of HSBC Uni-Folio, an open ended Guemsey unit trus!
scheme established as an umbrella fund which s aulhorised under the Prolection ol Investors (Bailiwick of
Guernsay) Law, 1987 as amended and is subject to the provisions of The Authorised Colleclive Investment (Class
B} Rules, 2013 (lhe Rules”),

The registered office of the Manager of the Trusi is Amold House, St Julian's Avenue, St Peter Port, Guemsey GY1
1WA, Channel Islands,

The Trust invests through a whaolly owned subsidiary, HSBC Trading AdvaniEdge Investments Limited (the
“Company”), a Guemsey regisiered company. All investmenls acquired for the accoun! of the Trust are held by the
Company. These Consolidated Financial Statements include all the assets and liabilities of the Trust and the
Company (logether the “Fund™),

The Trusl registered as an Altemative Invesiment Fund ("AIF7) wilh effect from 1 July 2014, with the Financial
Conduct Authorty in the United Kingdom and the Commission de Surveillance du Sector Financier in Luxembaourg
and is available under private placement in these countries. As a non-EEA AIF with a non-EEA AIFM the Trusl is
not authonsed or regulated under AIFMD and consequently s not required 1o have a depositary.

I T rmpdi

The Consolidated Financial Statements have been prepared in compliance with the Financial Reparting Standard
appicable in the United Kingdom and Republic of Ireland ("FRS 1027) and the Statement of Recommended Practice
for Authorised Funds (The "SORP7) issued by the Investment Managemenl Association in May 2014 and effective
for accounting perieds commencing on o after 1 January 2015,

2 Principal Accounting Policies

The following accounting policies have been applied consistently in dealing with items which are considered
matenal in relation 1o these Consolidated Financial Statements:

Basis of preparalion

These Consolidated Financial Statements are prepared on a going concern basis under the historical eost
convention, as modified by the recegnition and measurement of certain financial assets and liabilties at fair value.

Gomng Concam

Al the date of signing, the Directors of the Manager have no reason to believe thal the Fund should nol be seen as
a going concern and hence the Consolidated Financial Statements have been prepared on a going concem basis.

| 1l

The Trust has availed of the exemplion available under FRS 102, Seclion 7 “Statement of Cash Flows"™ nol 1o
prepare a cash flow slatement on the basis thatl substantially all of the Trust's investmeants are highly liquid and
carmed al fair value, and the Trust provides a consolidated statement of changes in nel assets alinibulable o the
unitholders.

HEBC Trading AdvantEdge Fund | Annual Repor and Audiled Consalidated Financial Statements 2021 14
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2 Principal Accounting Policies (continued)
Usa of eli .

The preparation of Consolidated Financial Stalemenis in accordance with the recognilion and measurement
principles of FRS 102 requires managemant 1o make judgements, estimates and assumplions that affed the
application of policies and the reporled amounts of assets and liabiliies and disclosure of contingent assets and
labilities at the date of the Consolidated Financial Statements and the reported amounts of income and expenses
during the year.

The estimales and associaled assumplions are based on historical experience and various other faclors thal are
believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis for making the judgements
aboul carrying values of assels and labilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Aclual resulls could
differ from those estimales.

The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are
sknificant 1o the financial stalemenls are disclosed within the determination of funclional currency and the Fair
value of Investments accourding policies and Note 13,

The Consolidated Financial Statements include the results of the Trust and its wholly-owned subsidiary HSBC
Trading AdvamEdge Investments Limited, The Manager does nol consider the unconsolidated balance sheel of the
Trust to be a material activily as the only reason for selting up the subsidiary company was for fiscal purposes.
Accardingly, no unconsohdated balance sheel is presented in these Consolidated Financial Statements,

Funclional niatio

The funclional and presentational cumency is US Dollar ("US$7) because thal s the cumency of the prAmary
economic environmenl in which the Fund operates.

inatin ol funclional

Funclional currency s the currency of the primary economic environment in which the Fund operates, When
indicators of primary economic environment are mixed, managemen! uses its judgement to determine the lunclional
currency thal most faithiully represents the economic effect of the underlying transactions, events and conditions.
The managemenl has determined that the funclional currency of the Fund is US Dallar, Investor subscriplions and
redemplions are received and paid in the curency of the relevant share class,

Financial instruments
The Fund has chosen lo adopt Sections 11 and 12 of FRS 102 in respect of financial instruments,
i) Financial assels

Basic financial assels, including debtors, cash and cash equivalents, are inftially recognised at transaclion price,
unless he arrangement constitules a financing fransaction, where the transaction is measured al the present value
of the fulure receipts discounted at a markel rale of interes!, Such assels are subsequenlly camied al amortised
cost using the eflective interest method,

Al lhe end of each reporing pericd linancial assels measured al amorised cost are assessed for objective evidence
of impaiment, If an assel iz mpaired the impairment loss is the difference between the carrying amount and the
present value of the estimated cash flows discounted at the assel’s original effective interest rate. The impairment
loss is recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Tolal Return,

Chher financial assels, including investments in investment funds and derivative contracts, are initially measured at
fair value, which is normally the transaction price. Such assets are subsequenily camied at fair value and the
changes in fair value are recognised in the Consolidated Staterment of Total Retumn,

Financial assels ane derecognised when (a) the contractual rights to the cash flows from the assel expire or are
seftled, or (b) substantially all the risks and rewands of the ownership of the asset are transferred to another party
or {ch control of the assel has been transferred to another pardy who has the pradlical ability to unilaterally sell the
assel to an unrelated third pary withoul imposing additional restrictions.

HEBC Trading AdvantEdge Fund | Annual Report and Audiled Consalidated Financial Statements 2021 15
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2 Principal Accounting Policies (continued)

Financial inst : linu

i) Financial liabililies

Basic financial liabilities, including creditors and loan obligations are initially recognised at transaclion price, unkess
lhe amangement conslitutes a financing transaction, where the debt instrument is measured at the present value of
the fulure receipts discounted atl a market rate of interest,

Creditors and loan oblggations are classified as debt instruments and are subsequently carried at amorised cost,
using the effective inleresl rate method.

Financial liabilties are derecognised when the liabilily is extinguished, thal is when the contraciual obligation is
discharged, cancelled or expires,

i} Fair value of investiments

Investments in underlying funds are valued at the closing nel assel value (NAVT) per unil for the underlying
investments that the Fund holds, as al 5 pm (Guermnsey lime) on the Consobdated Balance Sheet date.

Investments in underying lunds which are nol queled on a recognised slock exchange or other Irading facilily are
valued al the NAY provided by their fund managers or their administrators, These values may be unaudited or may
themselves be estimates.

In addition, their fund managers or their administrators may nol provide values al all or in a timely manner and, lo
the extent thal values are not avalable, those investments will be valued by the Investment Adviser using valuation
techniques appropriale lo lhose investments. In determining fair value, the Investmenl Adviser lakes into
consikderation, where applicable, the impact of suspension of redemplions, liquidation proceedings, investiments in
side pockels and olher significant factors. The directors of the Manager and of the Trustee have no reason to believe
that the valuations used are unreasonable.

Realised and unrealised gains and losses on investments are included in the Consolidated Statement of Tatal
Return within Net capital gains. Realised and unrealised gains and losses on sales of investments are determined
using the average cosl method. Purchases and sales of the investmenls are accounted for on a trade dale plus one
basis.

i) Forward foreign exchange contracts

The unrealised gain or loss on open forward foreign exchange contracts is calculated by reference to the difference
between the contracled rate and the rate lo close oul the contract. Unrealised gain is reported as an asset and
unrealised loss is repoded as a labildy in the Consolidated Balance Sheet. All nel gains or losses on forward foreign
exchange confracts are recorded in the Consolidated Statement of Total Retunn.

Ravenue

Interest income is recognised using the effective inlerest rate method. Dividend income is recognised when the right
lo receive payment is established. All other sources of income are recognised on an accruals basis. Revenue is
included in the Consolidaled Statement of Tetal Retum. All non-class specific income i allocated to each unil class
in proportion to the tolal net assets of the unit class during the year. All class specific income is allocated to the unit
class to which il relales.

Expenses

Expenses are recognised on an accmals basis in lhe Consolidated Statement of Tolal Retum. All non-class specific
expenses are allocated to each unit class in proportion to the total net assets of the Fund during the year. All class
specific expenses are allocated lo the unit class to which they relate.

Interest expense

Interesl expense arises from credit facilities held by the Fund. These costs are recognised in the Consolidated
Statement of Total Retum and are calculated using the effective interest rate method,

HEBC Trading AdvantEdge Fund | Annual Report and Audiled Consalidated Financial Statements 2021 16
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2 Principal Accounting Policies (Continued)

Bomowing cosls

Bomowing cosls anse from credil facilities held by the Fumdd. These cosls are recognised in the Consoldated
Statermnent of Telal Retum on an acerual basis.

Foreign currency transaclions
Foreign currency lransaclions are translated al the rale of exchange ruling at the date of the ransaction. Monelary

assals and labilities denominated in loreign currencies are ranslated 1o US Dollars at the foredgn currency closing
exchange rale ruling al the Consolidated Balance Sheel dala.

The Fund reports the realised exchange gain or loss as well as the unrealised exchange appreciation or depreciation
on non-USs Dollar denominated investments in the Consolidaled Statement of Tatal Return, Any realised exchange
gains or lsses as well as unrealised gains or losses ansing from non-US Dollar denominated payables and
receivables and on foreign currency transactions are reflected in the Consolidated Stalement of Total Retum,

LCash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents includes cash in hand, deposits held al call with banks, other shart-term highly liguid

investments with ariginal maturities of three months or less and bank overdrafts, Bank overdrafis, when applicable,
are shown as loans payable in current liabilties,

Units In issue

Redeemable participating units are redeemable at the oplion of the unithodders of the Fund and are classified as
financial liabililies.

Transaction costs

Transaction costs are moremental costs that are direclly attributable to the acquisition, issue or disposal of a financial
assel or financial liabilly measured al fair value through profit or loss, Transaclion costs are recognised within the
Consolidated Staternent of Telal Retum when incumed.

New stamdards and amendments

There are currently no fulure amendments to FRS 102 issued thatl would have a significant impact on the Fund.

3 Net Capital Gains/{Losses) Year ended Year ended
31 July 2021 31 July 2020

Uss00o US5000

Met realised (lossesligains on non-dervative investments {1?Hh . ;,5.1.-.1
Met unrealised gains/{losses) on non-derivative investments 7413 18,783)

Mot realised gains on dervative investments 2,306 838

Mot realised losses on dervative mvestments (1.113) (915)

Met unrealised (lossesygains on derivative investments (839) T48
Tetal net capital gains/(losses) 8,281 13.568)

Dernvative investments held by the Fund are forward foreign exchange contracts as detailed in Note 12,

HEBC Trading AdvantEdge Fund | Annual Repord and Audiled Consalidated Financial Statements 2021 17
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4 Operating Expenses Year ended Year ended
31 July 2021 31 July 2020

US$000 US§000

Management fee (Note 5) {&14) (852}
Performance fee (Note 5) i4) :
Payable to the Manager and its associates {B18) (B52)
Trustee fees (Note 5) (27) {39)
Payable ta the Trustee and iis associates {27 {38}
Audit fees (28) 25}
Other expenses (incheding legal and professional fees) (87 (215)
Other axpenses {115) (241}
Total operating expenses {7&0) (932}

& Management, Trustee and Investment Adviser Agreements

The table below details the Managemant and Trustee fea rales as a percentage of the NAY per share class charnged
o the Fund and the performance fee rale per share class:

Management Fee® Trustee Fee" Performance Fee
Class Until 30 April 2021  From 1 May 2021 Until 30 April 2021 Frem 1 May 2021
LIS Dellar 1.65% 1.75% 0.10% - 10.00%
Eura 1.65% 1.72% ﬂ.1D“.§‘b - Iﬁ.ErEI‘N.:
R Classes 0.65% 0.72% 0.10% - 10.00%
S Clagses 0.15% 0. 15% 3 4 10,00%

“Wilh effect 1 May 2021, the Trustlee lee lor all classes is paid oul of the Management Fee.

The Management, Trustee and Parformance lees expensed during the year, and oulstanding at year end were:

Yaar Ended 31 July 2021 Year Ended 31 July 2020
Expensed Outstanding at Expensed Qutstanding at
Fee in year year end in year year end
Managament usse14.278 R LIS5552, 054 =
Trustes US$26.760 _ ‘ US%$39,247 -
Performance U554.438 UES4. 438 - -

& Debtors

As at 31 July 2021 As at 31 July 2020
Us$'000 US5000
Amounts patd in advance of investments purchased - 250
Amounts receivabie for fund shares issued” 27 2,509
Unrealised gaine on forvard foreign exchange contracts {Mote 12) 26 B73
Other recenvables 5 1,253
58 4 B85

* A3 July 2021, the Trust received a subscriplion request lor USS26,810 (31 July 2020; US52,509,149) in respect of
participating unils 1o be issued by the Trust on 17 August 2021,

HEBC Trading AdvantEdge Fund | Annual Repord and Audiled Consalidated Financial Statements 2021 18

94/191
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As at 31 July 2020
Us$'000
2,884

US$'000
735

Cash balances are held by HSBC Continental Europe, and HSBC Bank ple, Guemsey Branch (lhe "Custodians™) both
of which are ultimately owned by HSBC Holdings ple. The Fund's cash is maintained within the Custodian netwaorks in
seqgregated accounts, The S&P credit rating of HSBC Holdings Plc, the parent company of the Custodians at 31 July

2021 was A- (31 July 2020: AZ2).

& Creditors: Amounts Falling due within one year

Amounts recaived in advance of IBsung units®

Amaunts payable for fund unils redeemead™*

Unraalised losses on forward faraign exchange contracts (Mobte 12)
Accrued performance fae (Mole 5)

Cther accrued éxpenses

As at 31 July 2021 &s at 31 July 2020
US$000 US§'000
(27} (2,508}
(11}
= {25)
(4
(12} {87}
(54} (2,821}

*AL3T July 2021, the Trust received a subscriplion request for US$26,818 (31 July 2020; USSZ 509,149) in respect

of paricipating unils 1o be ssued by the Trust on 17 August 2021,

= AL 31 July 2021, the Trust received a redemplion request for US$10,833 (31 July 2020: USSNIl) in respeact of
paricipating units to be redeemed by the Trust on 26 August 2021,

9 Taxation Status

The umbrella fund, HSBC Uni-Folio, is exempl from Guemsey incoma tax under the Income Tax (Exempl Bodies)
(Guemsey) Ordinance 1989 and is charged an annual exemplion fes of GBP1,200 (31 July 2020: GBP1,200).

10 Redeemable Participating Units In lssue

All series of units rank equally for allocation of income and expenses and have the same rights altached to them.

The table below presents the Redeemable Paticipating Units in issue at the beginning and end of the financial year.

Redesmable
Participating Units in
Issue as at 1 August

Redeemable
Participating Units in
issue as at 31 July

2020 Subscriptions  Redemptions 2021

US Dellar Class 26,4228 - (6,136.01) 210,286.17
Eure Class V5740 - TET.40
US Dollar R Class 9,330.48 = [4,214.43) 5,118.06
Sterling R Class 8,230,650 = {0.78) §,220.T4
Eurc Hedged R Class 906 85 - (906.85) -
US Dollar 3 Class 84,067.92 3,886.30 [18,294,70) 71,830,562
Sterling S Class 79,028,265 51ATETE {11,568.32) 73,637.68
Eurg 5 Class 585126 - [2,458.23) 6,395.02
Tatal 406, 494 83 9,042,058 (41,575.30) 373,961.58
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Redeamable
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Redeemable
Participating Units in
issue a5 at 31 July

» 2019 Subscriptions  Redemptions 2020
s Dellar Class 224,025.04 = (7. 605.85) 216,422.18
Eure Class vor.40 - - Tor.40
WS Dollar B Class 8,330.48 - 9,330.48
Steriing R Class B,543.08 {312.56) 5,230.50
Eura Hedged R Class 808, 85 - - 206.85
S Dellar 5 Class B8,080.12 592084 (9, 833.04) B4, 057.02
Sterling 3 Class 65,968,891 19,318.48 (5,358.14) 79,928.25
Euro S Class 852605 478,71 (325.51) 885125
Total 40431301 25716803 {23,537 11) 406, 494, 83
The table below presents the Net Assets in USS000 for each of the last three year ends.

31 July 2021 31 July 2020 31 July 2018
US Daollar Class 36,399 34,518 30231
Euro Class 126 117 124
US Dollar R Class 678 1.128 1.226
Sterling R Class 1,084 247 1,016
Eurc Hedged R Class - 15 120
U3 Dollar 5 Class 8,112 8,639 o770
Sterling S Class 11,122 10,399 8713
Euro 5 Class 731 1,003 1,022
Total 58,322 56,866 61,222

The Fund's MAY per unit are disclosed on page 30,
11 Related Party Transactions

With effect 1 May 2021 HSBC Cuslody Services (Guemnsey) has been appointed as Trustee to the Fund. Until 30
April 2021 HSBC SFT (C.1) Limited was the Truslee.

The Fund has money on deposit with HSBC Continental Evrope (Dublin) and HSBC Bank plc, Guamsey Branch
on a regular basis throughout the year, The inlerest rate received is consistent with thal recaived on a normal
commercial deposil.

HSBC Bank ple is the parent entity of HSBC Custody Services (Guemsaey) Limiled, HSBC SFT (C.L) Limited, HSBC
Conlinental Europe and HSBC Bank ple Guernsey Branch and the Manager,

HSBC Altermative Investments Limited, the Investmen! Adviser, is wholly owned by parties thal are affiliated with
the Manager and the Trustee.
Bomowi i}

With effect 1 May 2021 HSBC Bank ple provides credit lacilities 1o the Fund. Mothing was drawn on the facility at
the year end. Until 30 April 2021 HSBC Bank plc, Guemsey Branch provided credit facilities to the Fund. The
interes! paid during the year was US3274 (31 July 2020: LIS524 433),
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11 Related Party Transactions (centinued)
ITEWTCLS an (continued

The Fund may borrow up (o a tolal of 25% of its NAW for a period of up 1o one month to cover a cash shorfall
caused by mismalched settlement dates on purchase and sale transactions; and for a period of up to three months
to finance redemptions; and for investment purposes subject to a maxmum of 10% of the Fund's NAV, lo facilitatle
additional invesiment in Investment Funds.

There were no other retated parly transactions for the year other than fees paid lo the Manager, Trustee and
Investment Adviser as oullined in Note 5.

12 Forward Foreign Exchange Contracts

Assels may be depominated in curmencies other than the funclional currency of each unit class and cerdain curency
exposure will be hedged back to the relevant unit class curmency. Hedging for this purpose may be by means of
forward foreign exchange contracls or oplions on such confracts or by using such other dervalive instruments as
may be available and having the same or similar effect.

The Fund shall nol invest in derivative instruments for speculative purposes. The Investment Adviser retains the
right to vary the policy on curency hedging al ils absolute discretion. All costs of such hedging will be met by the
Unitholders of the relevant unit class only.

The following lorward foreign exchange contracts were oulstanding at 31 July 2021 in respect of the hedging of the
HSBC Trading AdvaniEdge Fund.

Unit Classes Amount Bought Amount Sold Maturity Date Counterparty :;J;ll;:{?_l::;g

Us$'000
Eurc Class EUR104,109 USD122.967 31 August 2021 HSBC Bank 1
Sterling R Class GEPTED 822 USD1,068 47T 31 August 2021 HSBC Bank 2
Euro 5 Class EURE52,408 USDTT0.686 31 August 2021 HSEBC Bank 4
Stering S Class GBPT §21 USD10,596 19 August 2021 HSBC Bank 0
Sterling 5 Class GBPT 831,335 USD10.869.525 31 August 2021 HSBC Bank 19
Sterling S Class usD10,587 GBEPT.E21 31 August 2021 HSBC Bank 1]
Total unrealised gains on forward foreign exchange contracts (Note 8) 26
Total unrealised losses on forward foreign exchange contracts (Note B) -
Net unrealised gains on forward l'nrninn exchange contracts 26
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12 Forward Fereign Exchange Contracts (eontinued)

The following forward foreign exchange contracts were outstanding at 31 July 2020 in respect of the hedging of the
HSBC Trading AdvantEdge Fund.

98/191

Unrealised
Unit Classes Amount Bought Amount Scld Maturity Date Counterparty  Gainl/(Loss)
uss
Euro Class EURS1 252 USDI0B118 30 August2020  State Street Bank R
Eure Class EURAT 055 UsSDo8 813 30 August 2020 State Street Bank 8
Eura Class ELIRS45 usne2 30 August 2020 State Street Bank
Eura Class ELRS, 189 UEDE 156 30 August 2020 State Street Bank -
Sterling 5 Class GEP1,427,783  USD1,874,508 30 August 2020 State Streat Bank -
Sterling 5 Class GBP5.6854 585 USO7T, 755006 30 August 2020 State Street Bank (16}
Sterling & Class USD50.241 G__EF'*:M,AQ_B 30 August 2020 '_S_tate Street Bank {4)
Sterling 5 Class GBP424,965 US0557 922 30 August 2020 State Streat Bank -
Sterling 5 Class GBP128,185 USD1ST, 362 30 August 2020 State Street Bank 1
Stering & Class GEPE, 298378 US07 733495 30 August 2020 Sitate Street Bank 534
Eure 5 Class EURT41 814  USDaTe 589 30 August 2020 State Street Bank 1
Euro 5 Class EUR4 417 LSDd, S58 30 August 2020 State Street Bank -
Eure § Class EURTAT GOE UsDae3 118 30 August 2020 State Street Bank 51
Eura 3 Class EURA0,730 Us048 323 30 August 2020 State Street Bank
Eura 5 Class uUsDay EUR33 30 August 2020 State Street Bank -
Eure 5 Class EUR4Z 110 USDag 957 30 August 2020 State Street Bank -
Sterling R Class GEPE55,151 usDas1 825 30 August 2020 State Street Bank 2]
Sterling R Class GEP47 280 UsDEz 072 30 August 2020 State Street Bank .
Sterling R Class GBPTS0. 757 UsS0e21.821 30 August 2020 State Street Bank 64
Sterling R Class USDE,075 GHEPY G40 30 August 2020 State Street Bank -
Sterling R Class t.iSI:H&.?zE GBP35.216 30 August 2020 Sitate Street Bank 13)
Eure R Class EURS4 881 USD106, 386 30 August 2020 State Street Bank g
Eure R Class EUR532 usDsee 30 August 2020 State Street Bank -
Eure R Class EURS5,073 USDE 018 30 August 2020 State Street Bank -
EuroR Class EURES296  USD105801 30 August2020  State Strest Bank
Total unrealised gains on forwvard foreign exchange contracts (Note 6) BT3
Total unrealised losses on forward fod'-alln'n m::hari;n contracts (Note 8) (25}
Met unrealised gains on forward foreign exchange contracts B4
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13 Financial Instrumants
Market Risk Oversight

The Manager takes a mulli-tiered approach o risk management, with the understanding and management of risk
embedded in the Manager selection and portfolio management processes, logether with portfolio oversight and
manitoring in accordance with fund investment restrictions, as listed in the relevant fund seclion in the Prospecius,

In Manager selection, due diligence revolves around understanding whether the risks a hedge fund manager takes
in the pursuit of relurms are appropriate and controlled. Complementing this investment focused due diligence, is a
separate operational due diligence process, which evaluates the business and operational (non-investment) risks
of a hedge fund and seeks to avoid hedge funds where inadequate structure or process couk] compromise an
investment.

In portfolioc management, ensuring thal porlfolies are appropriately diversified is paramounl. In order to assess nisk
and portfolio diversification, both qualitative and quantitative techniques are used, including retums and exposure-
based analysis.

The Manager moniors each investee fund's compliance with the investment restriclions on a monthly basis and
redains oversight of all aspects of the risk management process.

The main ks arising from the Fund's inancial instruments are market, iquidity and credil nisk,
Market risk

Markel risk anses mainly from uncerainty aboul fulure prices of financial instruments hekd by the Fund, It represents
the potential loss the Fund might suffer through holding markel posiions in the face of price movements. The
Inviestment Adviser considers the asset allocation of the partfolio in order to minimise the rsk associated with
paricular countries or industry sectors whilst continuing lo follow the Fund's investment objective.

Markel risk embodies the polential for bath gains and losses and includes prica risk, currency nsk and interest rate
risk, The profitability of the Fund's investment programme depends o a greal exent on cormect assessments of the
future course of price movements of securlies and equilies and olher invesiments. There can be no assurance thal
the Manager will be able lo accurately predict these price movements. The securilies markets have in recent years
been characterised by greal volatility and unprediciability. With respect (o the investment strategy into which the
Investment Adviser has invested the fund'’s assels, there is always some, and from time to time a significant, degree
of marked risk, Details of the fund's investment porfolio at the Consalidated Balance Sheal dale are disclosed in the
Fortialio of Investments included on page 29,

The Fund, generally seeks to inftiale, increase, reduce or exil positions based on the use of a number of risk analysis
techniques, inchuding but not limited to sensitivity and simulation analysis and value al risk ("VaR") measurements,
which use statistical analysis of histoncal and implied volatilties and movemenis (o determine confidence levels of
the historical maximum polential loss incumed for each position over & determined time horizon. There can be no
assurance that losses will not occur and past perdformance i nol indicative of Tulure resulls.

The VaR calculation i a Monte Carlo simulation of each of the underying holdings of the portfolio, which are then
aggregaled to produce relums Tor one thousand simulated portfolios.

The relums are simulated as the proporional increments of constant drift, constant volatilly stochastic processes,
thereby approximating continuous-time gecsmetnc Brownian molion.

The dala below indicales the VaR of the Fund's financial instruments, measured as the polential 1day loss in value
frm adverse changes in fund prices, interest rates and foreign exchange rates using a 99% confidence level,

31 July 2021 31 July 2020
Owerall Market VaR (90%) {6.83%) (B.015%)

{a) Other price risk

Price nisk is the sk thal the value of the investmants will luctuate as a resull of changes in markel prices (other
than those arising from interest rate nisk or currency nsk), whether caused by laclors specific to an individual
investiment, its issuer of all factors affecting all investments raded in the markel,
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13 Finangial Instruments (continued)
Market risk (continued)
(a) Other price risk (continued)

The Fund is required 1o comply with the standard investmenl and borrowing restnclions as defined in the Prospectus,
The Fund's investmenl resticlions are monilored on a monthly basis by bath the Manager and the Truslee of the
Fund. There are specific guidelines in place for monitoring and reporing breaches, and situations where holdings
come close o restriclion levels,

(b} Foreign curmency risk

The Fund may invesl in linancial instruments and enler inlo ransactions denominated in currencies other than its
funclional currency, Consequently, the Fund is exposed 1o risks thal the exchange rale of s currency ralative to
olher loreign curencies may change in a manner that has an adverse effect on the value of thal portion of the
Fund's assels or liabilities denominaled in currencies other than US Dollars.

The Fund's currency nsk is managed on a monthly basis by the Investment Adviser in accordance with policies and
proceduras in place. The Fund's overall currency posilions and exposures are monitored on a monihly basis by the
Manager.

The Fund offers redeemable paricipating unils denominated in Euro and British Pound Stering exposing the Fund
lo foreign currency risk. This risk is miligated on behall of the unitholders by the Fund entering into forward foreign
exchange contracts as described in Nole 12.

(c) Interest rate rsk

The majorty of the Fund's finandial assets are investments in investment funds which neither pay interest nor have
a malurily date. The Fund is exposed 1o risks associated with the effects of flucluations in the prevailing level of
markel interest rates on the fair value of underdying investments which the Fund has invested in.

Ag al the year end, the Fund had no loan outstanding (31 July 2020: Mil). Interest of USS274 (31 July 2020:
US524 433) was charged for the year in relation to the credit lacilities oblained during the year,

Other assels and liabilitles bear no inlerest rale risk except for cash balances of USST35,071 (31 July 2020:
USS2 983, 701) which are subject 1o the varable interest rates.

Liquidity risk

Licuiclity risk is the risk the Fund will encounter difficullies in meeling obligations associaled with financial liabilities.
The main Eability of the Fund is the redemption of any units thal investors wish to sell. The risk is that the Fund
might not be abba 1o iquidate investment posilions in arder o repay amounts demanded by its unitholders,

The Fund's liquidity risk is menaged on an ongoing basis by the Investimen Adviser in accordance with policies
and procedures in place, i is nol the normal policy of the Fund o invest directly in funds, imited partnerships or
other vehicles that have no Bquidily.

The Fund's investmant restriclions, as delned in the Prospecius, some of which perlain to the management of
liquidily risk and concentrations thereof are moenitored on a monthly basis by the Manager and the Trustee of the
Fund. There are specific gukelines in place for monitoring and reporting breaches, and siluations where holdings
come close to resiriclion levels,

The Manager may limit the number of Units in the Fund which may be redeemed on any Dealing Day to not more
than five per cent, or such greater percentage, as specified in the Fund Seclion of any Fund, of the total number of
such Units in issue immediately before such date. Any Units failing 1o be redeemed upon the exercise of this
discretion by the Manager will be camied forward to the next Dealing Day and shall be redeemead pro rala in priority
to any other Units in respect of which a Redemplion Notice has subsequently been received.,

A 31 July 2021 and 31 July 2020 there were no restriclions in place on any of the investes funds which would limit
th Fund’s ability o redeem its investment holdings.
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13 Finangial Instruments (continued)
Liquidity risk {eontinued)

Al of the Fund's financial Rabilities are due within one month, and net assels attibulable 1o the unitholders of the
Fund are due in accordance with the imeframe as described in the prospectus, See Mole 10 for infonmation,

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk thal a counterparty 1o a financial instrument will fail to discharge an obligation or commitment
that it has entered inlo with the Fund,

The Furnd will be exposed o a credil risk on panties with whorm i trades and will also bear the risk of settlement
dedaull.

In addifion, the Fund is indirectly exposed lo the credit risk of the underdying investes funds,

Substantially all of the assets of the Fund are held by the Cuslodians. Bankruploy or insabvency of the Custodians
may cause the Fund's rights with respect lo securilies held by the Custodians to be delayed or limited, The Fund
monitors its risk by monitorng the credit qualily of the Custodians the Fund uses, The credit rating of HSBC Holdings
plz, the parent company of both Custodians at 31 July 2021 was A- (31 July 2020, State Street Corporation; A) as
raled by S&P Ratings Agency.

Fair value hierarchy

FRS 102 requires disclosure relating to the fair value hierarchy in which fair value measurements are categorised
for assets and Rabilities. The disclosures are based on a three-level fair value hierarchy for the inputs used in
valuation techniques Lo measure fair value.

The fair value hierarchy as required under FRS 102 s based on the valualion inputs used lo fair value the
financial assets and labilities and consideration of the markel activity for each individual financial assel and
Habiliy, The definitions for Levels 1, 2 and 3 are set oul below.

Level 1: The unadjusted quoled price in an aclive markel for identical assets or habilities that the enlily can access
al the measuremenl date.

Level 2! Inpuls other than quoled prices included within Level 1 that are observable {iLe. developed using market
data) for the assel or llabilily, either directly or indirectly,

Lewvel 32 Inputs are unobsernvable (i, for which markel data is unavailable) Tor the assel or lability.

The level in the fair value hierarchy willin which the fair value measurement was calegorsed in ils enlirely was
determined on the basis of the lowest level inpul that was sgnificant to the fair value measurement in its entirely,
Farthis purpose, the significance of an inpul was assessed agains! the fair value measurement in ils entirely.

It & fair value measurement used observable inpuls thal required significant adjustment based on unobservable
inputs, thal measurement was a Level 3 measurement. Assessing the significance of a parlicular inpul to the fair
value measurement i its entirely required judgement, considering factors specific 1o the asset or liabilily, The
determination of whal constiluled “observable” required significant judgement by the Manager.

The Manager considers observable data o be markel data that was readily available, regulary distributed or
updated, reliable and verifiable, nol proprietary, and provided by independent sources thal are activaly involved in
the relevant market.
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13 Financial Instruments (continued)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

{a) Hierarchy analysis

The following tables provide an analysis of the fair value hierarchy of the Fund's financial assels and liabiBlies,
measured al fair value at 31 July 2021;

Lavel 1 Lewval 2 Lovel 3 Total
US$'000 Us$'000 US$'000 US5'000
Assats
Fimancial assets at fair value through profit or loss:
Inwastment funds - 57,583 - 57,583
Forward foreign exchange contracts i 26 ol 28
Total Assets - 57,609 - 57 609

The lolbowing latde provides an analysis of the fair value hierarchy of the Fund's financial assets and liabilities,
measured al fair value al 31 July 2020

Level 1 Lovel 2 Lovel 3 Total
; uss'ooo uss'o00 _Uss'000 uss'ooo
_Assets N N : _
Financial assats at fair value through profit or logs
Investment funds - 51,818 - 51,818
Faoreard foreign exchange contracts - B73 - G673
Total Assets - 52 40 - 52491
Lavel 1 Leval 2 Lavel 3 Taotal
USS'000 Uss000 Uss'000 Us$'000
Liabilities
Fimancial liagilities at fair value through profit or
loss:
Forward fareign exchange contracts - {25) - {25)
Total Liabilities - {25) - (25)

{b) Transfars befween fevels of the fair value hierarchy

There wera no ranshars between Leval 1 and Leveal 2 of the fair value hierarchy during the inancial year ended 31
July 2021 or 31 July 2020,

Leverage

Where a fund permits leverage, the underying volatility of the Fund will be significantly greater than would otherwise
have been the case withoul the permilled keverage. Whilst this gives a Fund the abililty Lo parlicipate in higher
refurns associaled with greater exposure, il also gives a Fund exposure lo increased losses where markels in
general and a fund in particular, inves! in assels where prices suller declines.
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13 Finaneial Instruments (continued)
Leverage (continued)

Cerain invesimen! funds in which the Fund may invesl use maleral kevels of leverage and are not limited in either
their bomowing capaclly nor in their level of margin commitment. The tolal value of posilions held by these funds
may exceed their nel asset value. The leverage acquired offers the possibility of achieving a much greater overall
redumn, but also increases the Fund’s volatility and camies the risk of total loss of the amount invested. Please refer
fo Mote 11 for details of borrowing of the Fund,

14 Capital Management

The capital of the Trust is represented by the nel assels altributable 1o the unitholders of the Fund, The Trust is
subject to monthly redemption requests of the unithokers,

The Trust's aim with respect to management of its capital is to safequard is ability to continue as & going concem,.

The Manager monitors capital on the basis of the value of nel assets attributable 1o the unitholders of the Fund. As
detailed in Note 13, the Fund's investment restrictions, as defined in the Prospectus, seme of which perlain 1o the
management of iquidity risk and concentrations thereof include restrictions in respect of investment in closed-ended
funds, restricticns in respect of redemplions, restrictions in respect of the percentage holding allowable in any
individual Investmment fund. There are specilic guidelines in place for monitoring and reporling breaches, and
siluations where holdings come close 1o restriclion levels.

The Fund also has a loan facility available lo cover a cash shortfall caused by mismalched settlement dates on
purchase and sale transactions and to fund redemptions (subject to a maximum of 25% of the Fund's NAW) and for
invesiment purposes (subject to a maximum of 10% of the Fund's NAV), to facilitate additional investment in
Investment Funds. Please refer 1o Mote 11,

Also as detailed in Nole 13, the Manager may limil the number of Units which may be redeemed on any Dealing
Day 1o nol more than 5% or such greater percentage of the lolal number of Unils inissue immediately bedore such
date il the liguidity of the Fund becomes insufficient, Such 5% limit shall be calculated in respact of the Fund as a
whale and nol in respect of each individual Unil class,

156 Distribution Policy

The Manager does nol recommend the payment ol a dividend. All income will be “rolled-up”, and will not be
disiributed but will be retained in the Fund and reflected in the NAV per unit.

16 Side Pochet

On 31 July 2008, the Manager was advised thal the Discus Non US Side Holdings Lid, in which the Fund held
shares, filed 8 bankruptoy petition due to an unexpected incident and the manager of Discos Fund Limited set up
a side pocket (the "Discus Side Pockel”), The Fund was issued shares in the Discus Side Pocket,

The Manager and Trustee created a side pocket in the Fund (the “Fund Side Pocket™) as at 30 September 2007,
and shares in the Discus Side Pocket were ransferred oul of the Fund's portfolio, and into the Fund Side Pockel,
As al the transfer date, the investment in Discus Fund Limited represented 4% of the Fund's lotal investment
portfolio valuation, Shares of the Discus Side Pockel therefore do not form part of the Fund's portfolio for valuation
purposes and were valued at USSNl,

The remaining &,564 shares in the Discus Side Pocket were redeemed in the year ended 31 July 2020,
17 Foreign Exchange Rates
The follewing foreign exchange rates were used Lo translale assels and liabilities inlo the reporting currency (US

Daollars):
. As at 31 July 2021 As at 31 July 2020

Eure 08433 08435
Sterling 07142 07618
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18 Commitments and Contingent Liabilities

As al 31 July 20271 ard 31 July 2020 the Fund did not have any significant contingent commitments or conlingent
ligbilities.

19 Controlling Parties

The Manager does nol consider there 1o be an immediate or ultimate controlling pary of the Fund,
20 Significant Events during the year

HSBC Cuslody Services (Guemsey) was appoinled as Truslee lo the Fund with effect 1 May 2021,

HSBC Secunties Services {Guemsey) Limited was appointed as Designated Administrator 1o the Fund with effect
from 1 May 2021,

HSBC Continental Europe (Dubding was appointed as Custodian o the Fund with effect 1 May 2021,

There were no other significant events alfecting the Fund since the year end which require adpstment 1o, or
disclosure i the consolidated financial statements,

21 Subsequent Events

There were no other significant events affecting the Fund since year end thal require amendment to or disclosure
in the Consolidated Financial Statemants,

22 Highest and Lowest NAV per Unit during the year

Highest Lowest
Unit Class NAV per Unit NAY per Unit
HSBC Trading AdvaniEdge Fund - US Doltar Class 17310 151,88
HSBC Trading .ﬁ.dv-anlE&ge Fund — Eure Class 140.34 124.14
HSBLC Trading AdvaniEdge Fund — Eurae Hedged R Class 108.02 101.80
HSBC Trading AdvaniEdge Fund — US Dollar R Class 13255 11548
HSEBC Trading AdvaniEdge Fund - Sterling R Class 126.31 11037
H3BC Trading AdvanmEdge Fund = US Dollar S Class 11325 98.26
HSBC Trading AdvaniEdge Fund — Sterling 5 Class 10879 b4.62
HSBC Trading AdvaniEdge Fund — Euro 5 Class 10429 91.18

23 Reconciliation of Net Assets Attributable to Holders of Redeemable Participating Units

The NAY per these Consolidated Financial Statements is inclusive of subscrptions of US526,819 (31 July 2020:
U552 509,149) and redemptions of WS510,833 (31 July 2020: USSNIl) which were booked (o the Fund after the last
Dealing NAV had been finalised. The table below reconciles the movemen! from the Dealing MAV o the NAV per
these Consolidated Financial Statements, taking into account the aforementioned adjustiments.

As at 31 July 2021 As at 31 July 2020

UWS5'000 Us§000

NAV as calculated in accordance with the Prospectus (Dealing NAV) 58,306 54 357
Subscriptions not refiecied in the Dealing NAY 27 2,508
Redemptions not reflected in the Dealing NAY [11) -

NAV per these Consolidated Financial Statements 58,322 55,866
HEBC Trading AdvantEdge Fund | Annual Repord and Audiled Consalidated Financial Statements 2021 28
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Portfolio of Investments
as at 31 July 2021 (Unaudited)

Security Description Holding Market value % of total
ussooo net assets
Investrment Funds (39 July 2020: 91, 12%)
AHL {Cayman) SPC - Class A1 Evolution USD Shares 4,146 968 10,006 17.319%
Crabel Fund SPC Ltd. - Segregated Portfoho - Series 308 550 562 0.96%
Crabel Fund SPC Ltd. - Segregated Portfolio - Series 231 512 610 1.05%
Crabel Fund SPC Lid. - Sagregated Portlolio - Seras 95 3514 4 335 T 4%%
Fort Global UCITS Centrarian Fund USD Hedged 3,661 4,793 8.3F%
Man AHL Trand Alt USD 25,067 4,314 7.40%
Systematica Alternative Markels Fund Ltg, - Class A USD 36,885 6,534 11.20%
Tewksbury Imrasl:n'le-nt-s-Fund 3-05 9.1&32 156&%
Transtrend Fund Allance - Omndtrend (LISD) 1,448 4,031 5.91%
Two Sigma Compass Enhanced Cayman Fund Ltd 967 4.749 8 14%
Two Sigma Investment Fund Ltd. - Class A 2,265 2,952 5.06%
Two Sigma Spectrum Fund 1,344 5475 9.35%
Portfolio of Investments 57 583 98.73%
et current assets 738 1.27%
Total net assats 58,322 100004
HSBC Trading AdvantEdge Fund | Annual Report and Audited Consclidated Financial Statements 2021 28
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Investor Information
as at 31 July 2021 (Unaudited)

Redeermnable participating units in issue 31 July 2021 31 July 2020 3 July 2019
US Dollar Class 210,286.14 316,422 18 224,029.04
Euro Class TET.40 757,40 T57.40
Euro Hedged R Class = 80585 506 85
US Dallar B Class 5,116.05 9,330.48 9,330.48
Sterling R Class §,229.75 & 230.50 §,543.06
Us Dollar & Clazs 71,638.52 84,087 92 BB.08012
Sterling S Class 73,637 68 7982625 65,0689
Eurn 5 Class 6,395.02 8851.25 B,598.05
NAV per unit
US Dollar Class US$173.10 LUS5159.49 US$175.12
Eurn Class EUR140.34 EUR120.73 EUR14E.78
Euro Hedged R Class = EUR106.93 EUR1187E
US Dallar R Glass US$132.56 US5120.93 US5131.38
Sterling R Class GBP126.31 GBP115.80 GBP127.68
US Dollar 5 Class US§113.25 US5102.76 US5110.83
Sterling 5 Class GBP108.79 GEPED 12 GEP108.61
Eurn 5 Class EUR104.28 ELRS5.63 ELR105 358
Total NAY
US Duollar Class (US5'000) US$36,399 US534 518 US539,231
Eurg Class (EUR'000) EUR106 ELRSS EUR111
Euro Hedged R Class (EUR'000) - EURST EUR108
US Daliar R Class (LS5 000) USSETE Us51,128 LSS 226
Sterling R Class (GBP'000) GBP787 GBP721 GBPE3S
US Dallar S Class (USS'000) Usss, 112 USSE 630 SS9, 770
Sterling S Clags (GEP'000) GEP7,9356 GEPT 922 GEP7, 185
Eurg 5 Class (EUR'000) EURGET EURBAE EUREYT
Portfolio Classification 31 July 2021 31 July 2020
Unisted securities 100.00% 100.00%
100.00% 100.00%
Sector Allocation 31 July 2021 31 July 2020
Managed Futures 89.40% B0, 30%
Market Neutral 9.40% 6.20%
Cash and Expenses 1.2ﬂ‘:f. 3,508
100.00% 100, 00%
HEEC Trading AdvantEdge Fund | Annual Repor and Audited Consolidated Financial Stalements 2021 30
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Summary of Significant Portfolio Changes
for the year ended 31 July 2021 (Unaudited)

Purchases
Cost
Description Hominal LIS5'000
Two Sigma Specirum Fund 502 1,590
Tewksbury Investments Fund Fi: 1,885
AHL (Cayman) SPC - Class A1 Evelution USD Shares 377,423 800
Systematica Alternative Markets Fund Ltd. - Class A USD A4 147 &00
Crabel Fund SPC Ltd . S50 250
Man AHL Trend Alt USD 2,564 400
Sales
Procoeds
Description Hominal US5'000
AHL Evelution Frontier Fund 2,197 502 2,458
Two Sigma Investrment Fund Ltd, - Class & 983 1,100
Two Sigma Compass Enhanced Cayman Fund Lid 190 BEd
Man AHL Trend Alt USD 3,003 G50
Systematica Albernative Markels Fund Ltd, - Class A USD 2,991 S00
Crabal Fund SPC Ltd. - Segregated Portfolio - Serias 85 284 350
Transtrend Fund Alliance — Cmnitrend (USD) 115 300
There wara no other purchases and sales during the year ended 31 July 2021
HEBC Trading AdvantEdge Fund | Annual Report and Audited Consolidated Financial Slatements 2021 31
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Performance Information
as at 31 July 2021 (Unaudited)

Performance Overview

Year ended 2021 2020 2019 2018 2m7
HSBC Trading AdvantEdge Fund - U3 Dollar Class 8.53%  (B93)% B17% 147%  {6.76)%
IM USD LIBOR+3.5% 3.82% 5.47% 6.268% 5.43% 463%
HSBC Trading AdvantEdge Fund - Euro Class TA6% [(10941% 511% {1.32)% {B.41)%
3M EUR LIBOR+3 5% 3.04% 3.21% 323% 3.21% 32TH
HSBC Trading AdvantEdge Fund - Euro Hedged R Class®™ - (998 )% B.12% 0.17% {B.03)%
M EUR LIBOR+3.5% 3.21% 323% 3.21% 327T%
HSBC Trading AdvantEdge Fund - US Dollar R Class 8.81%  (7.05)% 9.20% 2.53%  (5.88)%
IMUSD LIBOR+3 5% 3.82% 5.47% & 26% 5.43% 4 63%
HSBC Trading AdvantEdge Fund - Steding R Class 9.08% (9.31)% 7.24% 0.92% (8.801%
3M GBP LIBOR+3, 5% 3.66% 4.31% 4 45% 4 12% 4 03%
HSBEC Trading AdvantEdge Fund = US Dollar 3 Class 10.21%  (7.371% 981% 112 ]
IM USD LIBOR+3.5% 3.B2% 5.47% 6.268% 5.43% 4.63%
HSBC Trading AdvantEdge Fund = Steding S Class 9T6%  (BT4)% FET% 1.65% i,
IM GBP LIBOR+3.5% 3.66% 4.31% 4.45% 412% 4.03%
HSBC Trading AdvantEdge Fund — Eura 5 Class® 9.08% {9.25)% B.55% 0.54% A
3M EUR LIBOR+3.5% 3.04% 3.21% 323% 3.21% 3.2T%

*This Linit Class launched on 31 January 2017
** Fully redeemed February 2021

Past performance is not indicative of future performance. The performance data does not include commissions
and costs incurred on the issue and redemption of units.

HEBC Trading AdvantEdge Fund | Annual Report and Audited Consolidated Financial Slatements 2021 32
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HSBC
( 11 )
( ) ( . )
a. 57,839,728.44 6,580,426
b. -662,085.74 -75,325
C. (a-b) 57,177,642.70 6,505,100
q 205,367.24
’ 757.40
o 174.12 19,810

140.97 18,101

109/191



(

(

(

(

)

)

)

)

(

)

HSBC

10

10

(

)

(

(

)

)

110/191

(

(
)

)

EDINETOOOO
O00oDOoO0oooooooo0oooooOo(EsLss)
Ooooooooooooooooooad



EDINETOOOO
O00oDOoO0oooooooo0oooooOo(EsLss)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

111/191



EDINETOOOO
O00oDOoO0oooooooo0oooooOo(EsLss)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

€))
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©)
( 11 )
0
Carl Joseph Rosumek
( P ) KPMG
0
(Isabel Robins)
HSBC
0
(Anthony Charles Corfield)
0
(Stephen James Rouxel)
ICAEW 0
(Jason Liddy) FSCI
0
(Daniel de Lisle) 1CAEW
0
(Raj Grewal)
CIPM
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HSBC
HSBC ( )
HSBC
11 47 ( 10,990 )
11
2,196
UcITS
37 5,673
3,121
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HSBC

2020 12 31
2020 2019

18,126 2,062 19,531 2,222
11 6,027 686 7,511 855
13 39,400 4,483 18,290 2,081
12

63,553 7,230 45,332 5,157
14 26,564 3,022 10,605 1,207
15 17,969 2,044 13,693 1,558

44,533 5,067 24,298 2,764
17 158 18 158 18

18,862 2,146 20,876 2,375

19,020 2,164 21,034 2,393

63,553 7,230 45,332 5,157

2021 30
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HSBC

2020 12 31
2020 2019

25 3 64 7
25 3 64 7
78,315 8,910 56,576 6,437
(69,584) (7,917) (49,039) (5,579)
8,731 993 7,537 857
190 22 (65) )
8,946 1,018 7,536 857

(163) (19)

8,783 999 7,536 857
(1,859) (211) (1,723) (196)
(1,414) (161) (1,339) (152)
(3,273) (372) (3,062) (348)

5,510 627 4,474 509

(24) ®) @) (O]

5,486 624 4,472 509

2019
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HSBC

2020 12 31
2020 2019

5,510 627 4,474 509
10 (100) (11) (19) ©)
10 (19,626) (2,233) (3,841) (437)
10 20,235 2,302 1,708 194
(25) €) (64) @)
24) (€) @ ©
5,970 679 2,256 257
25 3 64 7
25 3 64 7

(7,500) (853)

(7,500) (853)
(1,505) a7 2,320 264
19,531 2,222 17,192 1,956
100 11 19 2
18,126 2,062 19,531 2,222
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2020 12 31
2020 158 18 20,876 2,375 21,034 2,393
5,486 624 5,486 624
5,486 624 5,486 624
(7,500) (853) (7,500) (853)
2020 12 31 158 18 18,882 2,148 19,020 2,164
2019 158 18 16,404 1,866 16,562 1,884
4,472 509 4,472 509
4,472 509 4,472 509
2019 12 31 158 18 20,876 2,375 21,034 2,393

HSBC
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HSBC

HSBC EU
IFRS

(@ IFRS
EU IFRS

2020 12 31
2020 12 31

(b)
IFRS
2021 IFRS 2022
2023 IFRS

IFRS
IFRS 17
IFRS 17 2017 2020
2023 2021

©

@
1,000

244 IFRS 10 a

©
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@

IFRS 15

HSBC

Q)

2020 2019

25 64
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2020 2019
61,405 51,736
16,910 4,840
78,315 56,576

(17,974) (17,281)
(584) (806)
(35,204) (22,949)
(15,217) (4,354)
(605) (3,649)
(69,584) (49,039)

8,731 7,537

13
2019 1.2

15
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2020 12 31
1,720,656

12 31

12 31

EDINETOOOO

O00oDOoO0oooooooo0oooooOo(EsLss)

Ooooooooooooooooooad

2020 2019
133 60
57 (125)
190 (65)
2020 2019
1,859 1,723
HSBC GPB
GPB 1,857,579 2019
2020 2019
13 13
2 2
15 15
2020 2019
76 69
76 69
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2020 2019
- 22 2
- 2 -
12 31 24 2
2012 12 13 2012 10
2013
10
2015 29 2015 10
2015 10
2E
24,248 2019 1,950
0.44 2019 0.04
2020 2019
5,510 4,474
10 2019 10 551 447
(527) (445)
24 2
2020 2019
75 7,500 - -
2020 12 31 2020 7.5 2019
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2020 2019
18,126 19,531
2020 2019

5,510 4,474
(100) (19)
(100) (19)

(21,110) (9,626)

1,484 5,785

(19,626) (3,841)

4,276 (4,463)

15,959 6,171
20,235 1,708
(25) (64)
(24) @

5,970 2,256

2020 2019

1,236 1,242

5,241 6,848

6,477 8,090
(450) (579)

6,027 7,511
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IFR
12 31
2020 2019
579 511
43 68
8) -
(114) -
12 31 450 579
12
2020 2019
0.001 0.001
)
2020
HSBC
100 1
2019
HSBC
100 1
GY1 1WA
13
2020 2019
19,954 10,102
2,982 3,873
16,464 4,315
12 31 39,400 18,290
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2020 2019
26,564 10,605
2020 2019
5,201 -
999 1,241
11,360 11,403
409 1,049
17,969 13,693
2019
2020 2019
100,000 158 100,000 158
100,000 158 100,000 158

2019
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HSBC
HSBC
HSBC
HSBC
HSBC
HSBC
2020 12 31 90 90

18,126 - - 18,126
5,327 652 18 6,027
39,005 362 33 39,400
62,458 1,014 81 63,553
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2019 12 31 90 S
19,531 . - 19,531
3,521 3,344 646 7,511
17,900 362 28 18,290
40,952 3,706 674 45,332
26,564 26,564 26,564
17,969 17,969 17,969
2020 12 31 44,533 44,533 44,533
10,605 10,605 10,605
13,693 13,693 13,603
2019 12 31 24,298 24,298 24,298
2020 12 31
2020 2019
126 113
17 37
28 2
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1 1
- 44
12 31 172 221
2020 12 31
61,448 1,506 558 41 63,553
(61,768) (1,486) (299) - (63,553)
(320) 20 259 41 -
2019 12 31
40,287 3,692 1,304 49 45,332
(42,185) (2,399) (748) - (45,332)

(1,897) 1,293 556 49 -
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2.2.2

2020 2019
33,548 29,609
(701) (826)
32,847 28,783
17,784 19,792
(280) (331)
17,504 19,461

2019

2020 2019
515 529

HSBC
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(b
HSBC HSBC
2020 2019
1 12 31 1 1 12 31 1
2020 2019
7,500 -
2020 2019
12 31 12 31

1 ! 1 !
25,374 18,126 26,588 19,531
1,888 1,236 1,705 1,242
26,564 26,564 9,127 10,605
806 11,360 16,989 11,403
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2020 2019
25 64
262 381
17,974 17,281
34,117 21,666
15,217 4,354
526 957
1,787 1,723
120 60
855 994
22
HSBC
HSBC
2020 12 31 HSBC
1986 25
HSBC HSBC
HSBC
8

E14 5HQ

www . hsbc . com

23
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HSBC Management (Guarnsey) Limited

Balance sheet at 31 December 2020
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5] ]

ate LIS§00a LB
L .
“Caslh e casth e bvmlonts s 18,128 ECE
Trade and cieor recoivalies 1]  BaF TEIT
Preparyimieis i scorue incoma » 30,400 18,280
Irrvnstreants in sulrsifnrie 7] = -
Totnl ssspts [E=] A T2
“Ushiirses snd squity i
Lighilitios
Trada el othar paysbios T 0,56 T
Accrusls, defered incoms snd other et H 17,068 1580
Tatal labiliies = 44,533 24,758
Equty
Colied op thare caetal = [ 158 188
ROUSNGS animisgs TB.BEE SO
Total cauiny 18,020 21,054

Tha sccompanying nates on pagas 12 ta 22 form an Intagral part of thess financlal statemonts,
Thase financiel stetements on pages 8 to 22 were approved by the Board of Directors on 30 March 2021 snd signod on it behalf

by

5 J Rauxal
Directar

'

oJ Liddy
Director
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HSBC Management (Buermsay) Limited

Financial statements

Income statement for the year ended 31 December 2020

] ]
[ Lm0l UEETEE
Irilerst ineama ] 25 B4
Nt interest (abame 25 [
Feo gnd commisr'on ncoma @I. m
_Fan and comamasion sxpanse W54 [
Hat feeincomne ] 5,731 TERT
DIhee 200ating ndoTel! sl ] B5
e . =
Charge & sxpeciod cracht kossm. and other ciadd mpsnmant dagas
- Cradh inpaaradd loabid ivsluding nivacasls o (MEs isant Raais dod imgdiiae glidd 11831 —
Tia7 opeat ng income 8,783 7535
Emplery and benali E 11,585 [IREE]
Ganral o SEm NG #1VE SRpR T mAaia [iE:5]
Tolsl operaling expensan 13214 [
Prefil balete ux 5510 44T
Tax pxpanss r [FLT]
Frofit for tha yoar - 5408 (X5

All operations are continuing, There has been no glher comprehensive income or expense other than the prodis for the year as
ahenam above (2013 nill
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HSBC Management {Guarnsay) Limited

Statement of cash flows for the year ended 31 December 2020

0 FT]
i SO0 LRS00
Cavh Mows hom coarating sctivities e ==
Trohs bafors tax L] S
Adprtments for:
' o ash s chaded T proti Dol Tix - il 1L
Change in operating sswnis ] LT [3.849)
o - 16,235 1,08
Trtevaat Fvmn L] 2]
Tax paid @4t =]
-ﬁllcldlm lr-nn-ﬁnnl:m 5870 4,755
Cash Bows from eveiting
e trant pceved 1] [}
Caah Bows from Tinancing scthibes
Teidvnds gaid 0 (7.5 =
Het caah traed in finan cisl acteties 7.500| -
“Hiut {decreaselincronts in cash an~d CaEh equAlaTAR K EEE]
Lraen and Cash equaaints Doought Innwas 14,537 17,18

Ettisct o enchangs race changes o caah snd coh equiadentt
Caih sed cash equivalanits earmad forwadd

160 iE]
. 18,036 EE=I

1m0
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HSBC Management (Guernsey) Limitad

Statement of changes in aquity for the year ended 31 December 2020
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Called up shars Ratained
e pizal aarwings Tatndl wquity
i uagono WS008 UE50C0
At 1 Jan FOED 168 m 2100
Fiofilt fo¢ the ynss - Ak E.4nn
Tortal grrabes b for tha yaar - B AR B8
Dieldpnds to shamhioiden [] = [ ] [t ]
At 31 Do $030 168 0T 19,038
A1 Jam 2018 'Iﬁ 18408 i858
ot for T year - TAATE [
Total i Tn Tor the ymar = aAT AT
Dihidends o shambokders .. = = =
At 31 Dee 2015 T 0878 1.5

Equity Is whally attributable 1o equity shaseholdess of HSBC Managemant {Gusmsey) Limbed
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HSBC Management (Guernsey) Limited

Notes on the financial statements

1. Basis of preparation and significant accounting policies

Tha financial stataments of the Entity have been prepared in accordance with the Guarneey Law as applicable to companies vaing
IFRSs a3 sdopted by the EL. The principal sccounting policiss spplied in the preparation of those fmancial statements have been
consisiantly applisd to all of the years presented, unless otherwise stated,

1.1. Basis of preparation

{a) Compliance with Intarnational Financial Reporting Standards

The financial statemants of the Entity have been prepared in nccosdance with the Guamsey Law as applicatls to companies using
IFASs as adopted by the EUL

Stondards adopted during the year ended 371 December 2020

Thare are no new standards adopted during the yaar endod 31 Decambor 2020 which heve matedial impact on the Enbity’s
financial statomants.

[b] Future accounting developmaonts

Minor amandments 1o IFASe

There are po minar amendments 1o IFAS: offective from 1 January 2027 that are applicable to the Enity. However, there ane
minar amendments 1o IFASs thet are effective from 1 Janvary 2022 snd 1 January 2023, These amendmenis will have an
insignificant effect, when adopted, on the finencial statemants of the Emity.

Wow IFRG3
IFRS 17 “Irseramce Coviraess

IFAS 17 ‘Insurance Confracts” was issued in May 2017, with smendmants 16 the standard saweed in June 2020, The standasd
pormes into eifect on 1. y 2023, At 1.J y 2021, the Entity does nat hald any insurance contracts and therefore no
significant impact is expocied from 1his standard,

{e] Foereign currencies

The functional currency of the Entity ks US dollars, which is also tha preseatation cusrency ol the financlal statemenis of the
Ensity.

Tranaactsons in foroign currencies sre recorded at the rate of axchango on the date of the transaction. Assels and Ealsbties
denominated in forelgn currencies are ranslated at tha rate of exchangs a1 ihe balance sheet dote excepl non-monetary assels
and liabilities measured at historkcal cost, which ane tranalated using the rate of exchange at the initial ransaction date. Exchange
differences are ingluded in other comprahensive incoma or in the inceme statement depending on whene 1he galn or loss on the
undardying Ham i focognised.

Unilgss otharedso specified, all LSS symbols reprosent US dallars.

[d] Prasentation of information

Al arnounts have besn roundsd to the nesdest thoudand wibass otheswise satsd.

Financial Statements Praparation

Tha financlal statements present information about 1he Entity as an individual undertaking and not aboat 18 group. The Entity s
not requined 1o prapare consolidated financial siatement by virtue of the exemption conferred by Section 244 (1) of the Guemsey
Law and pas.d{a) of IFRS 10 ‘Cansckdated financisl statemants”.

{o} Critical mocoounting estimates and judgements

The preparation of financial infarmation requires the use of estimates abeut huure conditions. [n wew of the inherent uncertainties
and tha high level of subjectivity Invobaed in the recognithon or measuremant of itams, highlighted in section (] below, itk
poasible thet the cutcomes in the niod financial year could ditfer from those on which manpgemem s ostimates are based. This
eould rasul inomaterially different conclusions from thoss reachad by manpgemant for the purposes of these financisl statemants.
BAsnagement hes not ussd sry judpemaents in prepasation of thess Bnanclsl stetementa.

hManagement’s selection of the Entity’s pecounting policies which centain critical estimates reflects the materiality of the iterms to
wohich the policies are applisd and the high degroe of estimation thceainty Invalvad.

{fi Golng concern

The financial statements are prepansd o o gaing concern basis, as the Direclors are satisfied that the Entity hes the resources 1o
continua n busineas lor the fores reable Tulure, In moking this asseasment, the Directars have considensd a wida range of
information redating 1o present and future conditions, induding future projections of profitnbdity, cash flows, capital requiremants
and capital resourcss. Thess considerations include stressed scenarios that rallact the inereasing unsertainty that the global
Covid-19 pandemic has had on HSBC operatians, as well &5 considering potential tmpacts from other 1op and emerging risks, and
the related impact on prafitabslity, capial and liguidity,
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gl Use of sstimates nnd assumption about future conditions
Tha praparation of financial information requires the use of estimates and assumptions abaut future conditions,

These astimates ard sssurmnptions requined management 10 maks |wdgements about The carmying vahso usad in obtaining Met
Aspat Valus |'BAN], on which revenuass aro gonerated, are not readily svailable from sources ather than tha undaeedying fund
administrator, due to the tima lag batesan the financial siatements baing prepared and the reeasa of the final AV, Thesa
aatirmates and sssumptions are based on historical experiences end other factors that aro conaldesed to be relevant. Actual results
may ditfer from these estimates,
T Entity wil eontinus to review whather these estimates that have been madn represant an sccurats representation of the
financlal information previded. Revisions 1 sccounting estimatas are recognised in the period in which the sstimates aro rovized
and in amy future paricds affectsd. In the apinion of managemant, all normal and recuring adjustments consldened necessany for
;::I-: pr:mudnnnfm Entity’s incoma staternent, Balance shoet and staterment of cash flows in thoso financial statements have
made,

1.2 Summary of significant accounting policies

(o} Investments in subsidiasries

Thi Entity classifies inveatrnants i emiies which it controls as subsidiaries, As tho Entity doss not prepere conaolidated financisl
statemaonts, subsidiaries aro unconsoidated.

Tha Entity"s imvestmants in subsidiares are stated ot cost less impaiment |osses.

{b) Employes compansation and benafits
Sharorhagad payrments

The Entity enters imto both equity-satthed and cash-setiled share-besed peymen] arangemonts with its employess as
compansation for tha provision of their senices.

Tha vesting period for thess schames may commence bedore the legal grant dete if the employeos heve started to render sarvices
n respect of the award before tha lagal grant date, whare theve |s a shared understanding of the teens and conditions of the
arrangement. Expansas ane recognised when the employes starts 19 render senvico to which the sward relstss.

Cancallations result from the fallure to mest a non-vesting condition during tha wasting pesiod, and are treated as an acoeleration
af wasting recagnised irmmediatyly in the income stetemnent. Felluro fo moet a vesting condition by the smployes is not treated s
o eancoliation, and the amount of sxpanse recognised for the sward is adjusted 1o reflest the number of awards expected to vest,
Post-employment bonefit plans

The HEBL group operstes a number of ponsion schamos including defined benefit, defined contribution, and poat-amploymant
benefit schemes.

Payments to defined contribution schemes are charged s on as the smployees rander senvicn,

Dwfined baneii! pension obligations ara calculated using the projectad unit credit rrsthad. The not ehange to the Income statement
misinly comprises the sendce cost and the net intarest on the net defined benefit assat or Tabllity, and s presented in oparating
XpEnIEg.

Femeasuament of the net dafined benalit assed or Bability, which comprise sctunrial gains and losses, return on plan asssts
mcluding Intorost and the atfect of the ssset cailing (i any, excluding interest), are mcognrised immedistely in athaer
comprehensha incoma, The net defined benefit asset or Babllity roprosants the presen vales of defined benafit abligations
reduced try the Tair value of plan aseats, sfter applying the asset coiling test, wharo the net defined benefit sumpius (s Hmited 1o the
prasant valua of available refunds end reductions in future contributions 1o the plan.

Thir cost of obiligations arising from other post-emplayment plans la acoounted for on the sama basis as defined benalit pension

(e} Tax

Income tax comprises current tax and doformed tax. Income tax is recognised in the income statamant except 1o the axtont that it
ralates to Mams recognised in cther comprahmnoive incoma or dinecsly in oquity, i which case the tax is recognised in the sama
statement bn which tho rolated item appeara,

Curmant tax s the tax expectad to ba payable on the taabls profit for the year and on any adiustment to 1ax payable in respect of
previcus yoars. Tha Entity provides for potential current tax [sabiitses that may orise on the basls of the armounts sxpected 1o bo
paid to the tax authorities,

Currant tax i cabculsted based on tax rates and lews enacted, or substantively snacted, by the balance shaet data.
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{d) Financial instruments measured at amortised cost
Tradha and ather receivables

Trada and other receivables ara recogrised initially a1 fak value and subsequenily messured an smortised coat using the attactive
intorost mothod, loss impalrmant. Assets classifiod and moasured at amormised ool ame monitoned for sny epected crodit loss
using the simplified approach, & provision Tor impairment is established whaen there s obfectve svidence that the Entity will not
T abba b cofact ol amourts dus acoording te the orginal 1eems of The receivables. The amount ol The provision is the differsnce
batwean the asset’s camying value and the pressnt value of sstimatad future cash flows, dacourted st the original affective
Interest rate. VWhon o trade mceivable is uncollectabla, it is written off againgt trade receivables and the amaunt of the loss i
recognisad in the income statement. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously writtan off are creditad 1o 1he incomas
wtatement,

Trada and athar payables

Trade and other payables ropressnt liabilities for goods ard services provided to tha Entity by other group companies prios 1o the
ond of the financial yaar, which ara unpaid. The smounts ol nic0grised walially A thinr (Al valua and sulbseguently mabsured &
amestised cost using the aftactive interes) method,

Acciuals and other financial Nabilitsas

Thml;unl wre regognised initially of fair value and subseguently mensured at amortised cost using the effective interest
ma

{e} Called up share capital

Financial ingtruments issued ane gonenally cossilisd ss squity whaen ther s o contraciusl obdigation to transier cash of oiher
financial assats, Incremantal costs directly attributasble to the issee of eguity instrumaents are shawn in equity o5 a dedwction from
the procoads, net of tax.

(f} Cazh and eash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalerts include highly ligusd investmaents that o reedily convertible 10 known amounits of cash and which are
subject to an ingignificant rigk of changs in value, Such investments are normally those with less than three months' maturity
fresm the dabe of acguisition,

(g Operating incoma

Intarast mocme and sxpanse

Interest income and expense Tor o financlsl Instrurmants ano recegnised in “Irterest income’ and *Interest axpenae’ in the incame
staterment using tha off gcthvs inlemst mathod.

The etfectivie interest rote is th rate thet eactly discounts estimaed fulure cash receigis or payments through the expocted ila
of tha finencial instrumant or, whene sppropeiate, o shortor pericd, 1o the net carrying amount of the fnancial assat or financial
by,

Interest on iImpaired financlal assets s recopnised using the rate of intorest used to discount the future cash flows for the pupose
o MassiEing 1he impairman ket

Mon-interest incoms and axpande

Nat feo incoma is esrnad from o divares rangn of sorvicns provided by the Entity 1o 13 customars, This is recognissd n the
mocounting paricd when the sendces sre rendared at an amount that refllects the corsderation to which tha Entity scpects (o be
entitled in exchange for tulfiling hs performance obligations 10 customers. The principles spplisd 1o the revenue recognition
critoria usa the fhve stop rrcdel in IFRS 15. Revenue is detormined basod on the transsciian prico negotated with tho custormar.
investment management servicos are satisfied over time as the sendces are provided and ane typically based uvpon a percentage
of the vahes of the client's pasets undor mansgomant. Any foes colloctod in advenca ane delerred and recognined bs iIncome over
the peried inwhich sendces ane rendensd

Parformanca fos revenues will fluctuate from poeriod to period and may not correlate with goneral market changes, since most of
the foes are driven by rolatkae perlormance 10 the respactive benchmark rathor than by absolule parformance, Padormance fes
revenues ata generated on cortain managemant contracts when perfosmance hurdles are achioved. Such foa revenuss ana
rocondoed i SperatEng revenuas whan tha contractual perlormancs enitaria hivve beon met and whan if it proballe that &
significant ml of revanun recognised will not oocur in future reponting pericds. Given thi unigue naturn of sach fes

arr e contracts Are evaluated on on individueal basis 1o determing the 1iming of revanes recognation.
Porfgrmance. lmu-mw arisa from investment managemont activities that ware indtially urderiaken in prior mporting poriods,

It i cosmmon for the Emtity to uiifise certain HSBC affiiated armites 1o lullil carthin ped ormance oblgatons in ifs fevenue
agrecsmanis, Gonorndly, 1ha Entity is deamesd 10 be the principal in these armangemants, becausa the Fntity controls the senvices
atfora they are bansfered to customens. Such contral is avidenosd by the Entity’s primary responsibifty 1o cusiomarns, the ability
to negotiate the affiliate price and select and direct alliliate sendco providers, or b combination of thess laciors, Tharlare,
inandgament fos reveniies and the relsted stfiliate distribution, sendce and advisory expentes ana reported on a gross basls as tha
senvicos e provided.

Fan expansas pald for the distribution and provisian of services (s recognised as expanss ot the services are provided,
Dievidend Income

Dividond incomi i3 recognisied whin the dgh 1o récors & paymant is extablishod. This B useally the date when the sharaholdars
approve the dividend for unBisted equity sacurities,

Otk optrating incama is camed from o diverse ranga ol Eorvicas prondadind by the Entity 1o NS custonmans.
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{h) Offsetting of financial assets and financial llabilides

Fnancial sseets and financisl [Ebilties ara offsst ond tho net amount i reported in the balance shost whan there Is o legally
anforcaable right to oifsat the recognised amounts and thare is an intention 1o setie on & not basks, or realise the asset and seitle
tha labifity simultangousty,

2. Net interest income

] 018
WEHO00 UASTED
laterast incomr e
Intoenst ncoma on finencisl inslreesnts 25 B
3. Net fee income
oo 2088
UBgom Lis§oc0
Fibad Managanin, adiinisimton 1000 ord TUSte Wat 61,808 1,736
e — n 18310 4,040
Totnl fee and commission Moomes 3 78,318 EEATH
TUatuim Gomrml saion ¥ P B §IOUD Lndertain s 117,574} [17,287)
Flartums ot wlonh paid 10 third parans A} {05
et sdvary oo 25,208 FIEC)
Perinmnanca fes [IEESE] ]
Fund 1 i Ped B TN (i (=]
Totsl foe snd commission sxpenses — "ﬂ?mm
Hat Tea incorea (R T LR

Management and trustes fees

Tha Erity recoives manspament, sdminkstration and trustes fess, normaily based on 8 porcantage of the underlying Net Asset
Velua {'MAV} e total commitments of the respecthe funds, Managemant, sdministration and trustes foas ars recagnised on an
scorials basls, The mansgement, administration and rustes fess recehabla at the ywar-end detalled in Note 13, Fiduclary income
tram the Ertity's regulsted fiduciary acthvities amaunt to $1.1 milion (2015 $1.2 million).

Return commissions paid to group undertakings

Tha Entity pays, 81 s discretion, retumn commissions to group undartakings and cortain approved third parties whe Introduce
subsoribars to funde under managament. Retwn commissions fall into two categories: First o portien of tho Placoment fee (whens
applicabia} and second as ongoing traller commisslon based on the MAY af manies imroduced by wnits and which remain
associatod with the particulsr unit. Commisalans are accounted for an an sccruals basks snd the comimissions payabbe 8 the year-
end ara dietaded in Nate 15

Investment advisory feas

Thie Entity pays Evvastmant scdvisory fees to fellow subsidiary of HSBC Group and third party managers whers management has
beon dologated. Imestrment advisory fees are sccounted for on an scoruals basls.

Performance fees

Under the varicus management agreements with tho underiying funds, tha Entity may bo sntitded 1o 8 perfarmance foe. Tha Entity
has the ability to share any such Performencs leas with sssociates snd imestment advisers as appropeinte. Perfcermnancn fees are
recognisad wiven the right to receive the porformanca fes income is astablished.

Whare a sarvice |s tranafarred 1o the customer bofena the customer prys considaration, or befors payment is due, thase amournts
a0 included s accrued incoma in Note 13, Where the Entity has an unconditional right 1o considemtion for the services supplisd
and porformanca obligations delsared, thass ameunts ane included a3 tade recshvables In Mate 11,

4. Other operating incoma/{axpensa)

2030 ET]

U000

it exparating incoms 133 B0
FEreign Wt g i {icas] (I ik
Waar anded 31 Des - i [
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5. Employee compensation and benefits
Total employes companaation

2000 0
- P R P —— - uaoon LEREE
) T T T T

AN gtall acting on behalf of 1he Entity are paid by HSBE Bank Ple Guernsey Branch {GPBL On @ monthly basie, GPB Invoices the
Entity for statf utilised in the Entity's operations. For the year ended 21 December 2020, GPE billed the Entity a total of $1,857,679
[2019: §1,720,658) for salarias and benofits.

Average number of persans employed by the Enuty duning the year

020 2015

M. Ha.

Cearntons and Suspen 13 [E]
Vear ended 31 Dea o el &

The avarage nurmber of parsons amploved by the Entity duting the year inchedes the Direciors wha ana directly employved by the
Eritity.

6. Auditors” remuneration

030 w8
Lot LERO0
Ak fpas Tor saenunony sudi
- e [l ] 10 SUETBR YR TE =]
Yaar ended 31 Do 76 ;]
7. Tax expenss
Tax expensa
00 2018
UE§oen USEDN
Eurrest bas
qu?ﬂﬁ'ﬂ.ﬂhl{l if
- P curans yew - 2 ]
+ Austreanis b smapect of pror wman T -
Wakr andad 31 Das 24 £l

Following the passing of the Incoma tax (Zen 10} (Company interrodiate Rate) (AmendmemiGuernsey] Ordinanss 2012 an 13
Decamber 2012, with eMect froen 1 January 2013 cha Entity's income arising, nel of deductibls sxpenees, Irom apecilic regisdated
fiduglary business Is taxed at the Entity intermediate rate of 105 (Note 3 ghaws the fidudary incoma eamed in the year,
Subsequent on 28 July 2015, the incoma tax (Zero 10) ICompany [ntermediate Rate) [Amendment] (Guerneey) Ordinance 3015
[chas "Amandmant’h was passad, etfecthe from 1 January J07E. The scope of taxable business. activities, subject to the Entity
intermediate rate of 10%, was extended 10 include ingeme from the administration of controlied Investments. The Board of
Directors congidersd the wxigling ravesnus from ths sdministration of controlled irvestmants 1o ba out of scope 8 the
Amardment, saction 2E, included only provalon of pdministraiion services 1o controlled Invesiments by unconnected third
parties, The remaindar of tha Entity’s sncama is 1axed at the someany standard rate of 0%, The Entity hag USE24,248 axponsies in
ralatian 1o the taxatien on its fiduclary business (2015 US51,850).

Tha effective Guermssy corporation tax rate applying to the Entity was 0L443% (2015 0.04%,.

Tax reconciliation

Th tax eharged 10 1he lncome Statement does not differ 1o 1he tax expenss that would apply i all profits had besn taxsd a1 1he
Guomaoy Comparate tax rate,

US§o0 Lgoto
Profi for e wshs Eslord incoma 1 5510 aia
Extimated ta s 109 { (2075 109 581 i)
Fo Faxpot i L] (=2
Incame tax sxpenis FL) ]
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8. Dividends
2020 2018
US$ par shusrs [FET 5] LIS par ghave (5 3]
mhhuumm
mﬂmmht—pdﬂhm_ 75 7500 - -
A total dividend for 2020 of $7.8 million [2015: mmmlﬂnnmm sham ca) during the ended
3 Decambar 2020, v ral i
8. Cash and cash equivalents
T LR
y . oen S
A hakd with other progp UndeEkngs 1H, 120 1950

Amourts hald with ether group undemakings ano unsecured and repayabie on demand,
10. Reconciliation of profit bafore tax to Net cash flow

2020 FITT
g uUz§ooo \JEF000
Profit bators a 5510 (i)
“WNerrcath e incleded in profit and loss
it b sk S et ] [iE]
fios) [iE)
Chisngs in operating e et
ﬁ#hmmmm 1110 [T
Changn in trade e ather recevables 1.884 BT
tem T1BE2E) (3841}
Chisngs n opraking habilities
Ghonge in aconuals snd o abines. 4376 A
Changm i trecn snd oher paysbies 15853 [RL]
1,708
Intsrast fnd dividonea
irteron received ) [EL] ]
Tax paid Sor the yoar [-7] [E]
11. Trade and other receivables
2040 1T
) L3
_Amouni dos Trom othar proup undertakings i 1,356 1,082
e EEL]] 5688
Tradg and giher recsivebles pror to pr 6477 [(X52]
“Plicreings Vo oAl ncourky - | = [E] (]
e ; [Fri) A
Amounts due from other proup underakings ame unsecured and repayabile on demand,
The Entity applies the [FRS 9 simplifisd approach to mansuring sspocted credit lessss which used & letime sxpected Ioss
allgwranca for all trede and othor recelvablas.
The losa aligwances for trade and other receivabies ns t 31 Decomber recancila to the epening lass allvwances se followa:
2030 FT)
Us§ 000 LB
At len - 578 Bt
Inzmisse in loea alowance | il | profit or loas durng tha year a3 B
Anoeivables wrimsn of during e ear 4a Uncoliectiole [T -
Wrrsed Bmount Pesersed (114) -
At 31 Dee 45 5H
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12. Investments in subsidiaries

030 3
usyses uateem
T e T ey 0.001 [
Eetasant in
Cowsry ol Egquity Copiiel
Inepeparadion M ahare Claid Meusf shasss
2020 s
mwfqm_w Gusmuasy 100 Ordinary US$1 1
“VER DG Parn b OF PLC Lmind Gy L (.
7. Avcross Aol House, St Jusan's dvencs, 5t Pefer Port, Goernsey, GFT 1A
Tha subskdiary aote as & General Partner for Guermnsey Limited Partnenships,
13. Prepayments and accrued income
020 08
UEE000 R0
Frrivitm Ecnaty Menogament Fos T 65k 10,003
Haad Extata Mg s bl IF—_ = -. 2,09 %
Periomrarca feas - 18,084 (ETH
A1 31 Due 38,800 LE
14. Trade and other payables
B =8
Us§008 U000
“AMDUIE 5.9 10 DiheT g Undeniakegs 76,584 )

Asmicunia dus 10 othes roup undonakings are unsecured. imerest fres and hive no fived date of nepayrents.
15. Accruals, deforred income and other financial liabilities

200 T
USO80 LS
Dalarred inccme I.ﬁ_l =
Agcrusly = ) 1,280
Armasnis oeed 10 Dt group undersi agy "I'LE 14,402
“Giiha bt i 2 (] 1,088
A1 31 Doz 7.8 LR
Amounts due 1o other group undertakings are unsecured, nor-interesl basring and repayablo on demand,
16. Offzetting of financial assets and financial liabilities
Ag et 31 December 2020, thers ware Ho amounts subject to anforceable netting arrangemants CH0N5: NI,
17. Called up share capital
0 g
Wil UEE000 Mumice LS00
Issund, aliotind snd fully past up
Qrdinary wharsa of £1 sech i 100,000 158 100,000 i
Aaan 1 Juraey aod 31 Dastimbas 100,000 188 OG0 158

18. Contingent liabilities, contractual commitments and guarantees
These wars no contingent linbilities of financial guarantes contracts 8 81 31 Decembar 2020 (2015 ndll,

&
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18. Management of financial risk

All of the Entity's acthities involvs 1o varying degreas, the analysis, evaluation, acceptance snd managoemont of risks or
combination of dsks. Tha mast important types of risk include financial risk, which comprisss credit risk, liquidity ek and market
risk, The managamant of fnancial risk and consideration of profitabifity, cash fiows and capitsl reacunces form & key slement in
the Directors’ assegsmaent of the Entity ss a going concern.

Cradit risk management

Credit risk is the risk of financlal loss if a customer or countarparny of the Entity fails to mest a payment obligation under &
contract.

Within the ovarall framework of the HSBC Group palicy, the Entity has sn sstablished risk mansgenmant process sncompassing
aredit approvals, the control of sxpesures, credit policy direction te the business, and the monitoring and reporting of exposuros.

The management of the Entiry is responsibla for the quality of ts credit portiolios and foliows s credit process invobving dalegated
approvel puthorities end credit procoedures, the ebjective of which is 1o identify problem exposures In order to sccolorate remadial
ection while building a partfolio of high guality riak assats. The Entity’s credit risk reting systems and procosses differentiate
expasures in order 1o highlight thoss with greater risk factors snd highor potartisl sevesity of bass, Ragular rvises are undartaken
to assess and ovalunte levels of risk concentretion.

The risk arises fram transsctions with HSBC undertakings. The management of eredit is undomakon in complisnce with tha Entity
recharge stratogy. The Emtity oparates within this and the eredit fisk exposwes ane reviewsd and managed by the sanor
managasmint of the Entity snd the HSBC Group’s Finance Exco, The maximum credit sopasune of the Entity is imited to tha
carrying vakie of the dues fram an HSBC Group cormpany and third pasty. Balancas are primarily with the HSBC Groug and thind
party and have low crodit risk.

Cradit sk is managed within tha overall fremesork of HSBC policy, with an eatablished risk m Frocess encompassing
credil appravals, tha controd of exposwes including those to borrowaers in financial difficulty], credit policy disction to business
unfts and tha manhtaring and reposting of exposures both on an individual and portfolio basis. Tha Directors are respanaids far
the quality of cradit portfolios and follow a credit process invebving dolegsted approval suthorfties and credit procedures, the
clifactive ol which iz to build and maintain risk assets of high quality.

Regulsr reviews are undertaken to xseess and evaluste levels of risk concentration, induding thosa to individual Industry sectors

anid products. Cradit fak i managed at & group level by business sector, rather then in respect of individual undertakings and i s
tharefora not conaldered appropdate to discloss quantitative data aboul sxposure to that sk,

Tha Entity"s exposure to cradit risk In relation to cash hald with othes group sntities relates to group undertakings that sro wholly-
owned subsldlaries of HSBC Holdings ple, and are part of the Business described abova, Such counterparties have no history of
datault and have besn able to moot their liabilities as they fall dus. On this basis tha Entity conslders the amaunts dus 1o ba flly
rocoverabie.

Thera are no gignificant concentrations of risk in the Entiy,

Thas Entity's exposure to risk arisos malnly from third party and intercemparmy foa recaivables. An important moasure of credit rek
Ia in the sgeing of feas recebaablo as roparted belaw:

D wihin B3 days  Dum Sldeys - 1 ypoar D ovar 1 yesr Tartal
At 3 Do 2030 UEROoT UAL 00D WUsEn00 FEE090
Cpal mrd| coal s vslan by 18,128 s - 18,128
Traca e ctinw menrebion 537 852 [ By
Frepaymanss and ctrusd come 00t 362 = 400
ey (X 1] 1,018 ] 43,557

Bom wditin D8 dujw e B0clwys = | yuar D e | pmar Toasi
A1 31 Doc M0 Lri§ o0 LRS00 ISR AR D00
Cosh s Caah pevalents (L) = TAGAT
Tench mod oihis reconabie EEzi) FETT B A
Prapwymeais and scoraed incores 700 &g = TH, 20
T ] 3708 (1)

Liguidity risk management

Liguidiny rigk ta the risk that the Entity does not have sufficlent financisl rescurces to meet obiigations as they fall due or will hava
accwss b0 such rescurces only st an axcosaive cost. The risk arises from mismatches in the tming of cash flows.

Tha fallewsing |5 an analysis of undiscounted cash lTows payable under variows financal labifitles by remaining contractunl
maturfiles at the balance sheot date:

Contra-siaal eash

Carrping weus Traws O Dhasrrnryil

— V000 UE§000 UBH'000

Tracia and ather payabians — 6,554 20,564 IB.584

Aceraaly, delarmed oo and otfar kebiites ~ 17588 12,8 17,808
At 31 Des 2020 55 44,633 44,550
Contrachusl cash

Crrmying vales fiowa O Domand

Ls§o0g Us$ g US¥ 000

Trade and oiher paysbios —anes 1080 0,605

Acerusti, oWfemed oo i OLher [abRs [ELE] TR [FEE]

AL 31 Dée 719 ] 24000
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Market risk is the risk that movements in masoet factors insluding interest rates, foreign exchangs rates o equity and commodity

prices will impact 1ho Entity's income or the value of il portialios,

Tha Entity"s objective is to manage and control market rate exposures while maintal
appatitg,

1 & masket profile conaistent with ins risk

Tine Entity manages market risk through risk limits approved at the Risk Managemeni Meseting and adopied by the Entity's Board.
An independent rigk unil develops risk managemaent policies and missurament techniques, snd feviews limi yiEsation on a daily
basis.

Forslgn axchange risk

Curteney sansitivity

A 5 % srengthaning of the US Dofar sgainet the follcwing curranciss & st 31 December 21020 would have reduced profits by the
amounts shown balowe. A 5 % waakening would have had tha squsl but oppasite effacts 1o the amounts shawn balow:

Proft o | oss =t

2622 0w

UG L Rie ]

Edi (F] (5]
Baman Pousc ¥ ar
G b it EL] 26
Chinida Yo 1 1
Hong Foag Dollsn - ad
A 172 m

Foresgn exchange risk

This Exitity & taposad 10 currency rigk in respoct of insoma and eash balances denominated in & currenty other than US Dollar,
This Entity’s eposure i kept to an acceptable level by managing the level of non-US Doller cash balances on a regular basis. The
Emlity’'s balsnce shes! comprises balances held in diffarent currencios. AT the reporting date the curency profile of the Entity

calanca sheat was:

[Ty [T ™) Difar Tokal
At 31 Do 2030 usionn usd 000 Us#to00 Lis$ion0 UsE000
Toud olinta E1.448 1,508 558 4y 63,853
Towl labises indogay i ) 1,485 [EEE]] = 163,853
Hat papones ) in LT A1 -
15 ol ] lum o Taal
A1 31 Dez 2078 U535 000 F= 5] [ R LET 000 =i
“Tokal aussin T ELH T aw I
Tatal lebiion o Boury AL, V] 2,3 7 — [
it pais |'I;.W?r 1,253 £ 45 -

20. Financial resources requirement

The tble bedows sets cut the caloulation of financial resource requirements pursuant to the provisions under Aule 2.2.2 of the

Licensces (Capital Adequacy) Rules 2010;

Finaaroc sl PS04 O MU TSN TeED

Fint s35°8 BRI pARImEnTs, cortrgan) [mbaies ang sl

Cepatr ol T5% Antesd Avdied Expaadings snd £100.000 (LSS 1355400

Mot Burplus Financis] Reigunsed

HE CuImenT prsets. bess oan \D gFIup compey

Giriaser of 10% Avevad Auclbed Dependt s had £30.000 (L34 12654

Met Suirphin Ligul dity

Z020 Totw
e e
33,548 TREDY
[Fak
TRTEE
17,784 1
[2&0) @31
17,504 18,361

In addition, there must be & minimum professional indemnity insurance cover ol £300,000 [or thres times totsl revans,

wehichewar s groater], the sxcess of which must not excesd 20% of the total ingured,
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HSBC Managament [Guernsey) Limited

21. Related party transactions

Tha Entity's related partiss include tha parent, fallow subsidindes, post-employmant benalit plans fer tha Entity’s amployees, Ky
Managament Parscnnel, close famiy mombers of Key Management Persannal and entities which are controlied or significantiy
infl d bry Koy Manag Py l o their close family membora,

{a) Transactions with Directors and other Key Management Personnel

Koy Manzgement Personnel oro dafined s thosa parsans heving suthority and rasponsibiity for planning, directing and
cortroliing the activities of the Entity and includes members of the Board of Directars. No ioans wene made ta Koy Management
Fersonnel for the year onded 31 Decamber 2020 (2015: Nona). The tabla balow provides the key managomant perscnnel
compensation wha am on HSBC Manegemant |(Guernsay) Limited payrodl,

2030 03
Zi USHO00 USS000
St o srmphoyes baradtts L. =

Twia af this key managament parsonnel are not remunerated by the Entity but instoad receiva thelr compensation from HEBC
Gloal Asset Managemani, the immaediste parent entity. There are na ather transactions, uther than fees: paid 1o Directors of the
Entity, between the Entity and Koy Management Perscnnel, which fall 1o be disclosed under LAS 24 “Related Party Dlaclosurss”
batween the Emity and the Key Management Personnel ™

{b) Transactions with other related parties

Transactions deteils balow include amounis dun tafram HSBE Global Asset Managemant Limited,

]
Hgaa ballancs Balanca f 31 i o ok e Pabe s #1231

during thes yuar ' Dwosmbar  donesd T yuss " Coce=ba
LUEg 000 st ] Usymn [Fc ]
Aiddls = = - T e
ListH Lies - - - -
T Tha clich of the hiphest balance and the highest balance cuning the Y i conpaisnsd the most rmeaningdid information o represent
ranssclions cduring th pear
[ 0
_ RO uEsom
Imeome atmernent
th e - 7500 =
Transactons datails below inchede amounts dua Wa/fram odher group underiakings,
mro e
Eslaca Eslanes w131 Higoe balares Sulioca nt 3
it e | Clasmsribar  dosing e yaer * Frarmr
LISH'000 ussoo0 SR USH0e0
Attt =
_Caah and caah eoudvekrn — anama 18,128 05 TaE
Trade and olher recelenbie 1,580 1,238 1,705 158
Trada e othar prvatie 26,564 75 564 [REH] L0
“Diher Rntiism [T 11,360 18589 T
T The dieclosure of the highest balance and ohe highast balanos during the yoar i considened the mas mesningly information (o rapresent
rransaciiong dring the year.
e ;e
E il b Lol
incore wirtnmertt
IFreat oo 5 B4
Tt and commypBken (nComa - Fund manngeman i sarniratsn e T 382 =
Fes and el rapgnEs - P SO B0 17,978 LEEC]
Fiil Bfedl CETHTERSIo Eapaarid - | ndvisory fooa 34377 1.0
Tew and COmTFESON eaparsa - Parfermance oo 16217 354
Fou and cormemienion mipense - Othar foes (1] 57
T kit Carsppnia ion and banits 1,787 1923
Crihie Oy aey i n 20 8
Ganersl And I FITEUVS B B%E 894

Tha abowva traneactions ware madea in the ordinary course of business snd on substantislly the same terms, including intorest rate
and seourity, as for comparable transactions with parsons of m simier standing or, whare applicable, with other employvses. The
trarsactiond did not invebve mare than the nonmal risk of repayment or prossnt other unfivoursble features,
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HEBC Management (Guarnsay) Limited

22. Parent undertakings

The ultirmate parent undertaking and ulimate comtralling party is HSBC Holdings ple which ks the parent undortaking of tho Langoest
proup to consolidate theae financial statements. HSEC Bank plo Is the parent undertaking of the smallest group 1o consolidate
thiesa financial statements.

Thas Entity is 8 wholly cwned subsidiany of its immediate parent undertaking HSEC Global Asset Management Limited and has
bean so throughout the yeoar anded 31 Decemiper 2020, The Entity was Incorparated in Guernsey on 25 Septernber 1986, Al
companses, ullimate eentro@ling party, parent undertaking and immediate parent undertaking, sre reglstered in England and
Walas.,

Copies of 1he HSBC Global Asset Mansgeman Limited and HSBC Bank Ple consolidated Financial Statemants can be obtained
Trowm:

HSBC Bank ple

2 Canada Squamm

Lemdon E14 5HO

Unied Kingdem

winra hesbo.com

23. Events after the balance sheet date

in i3 aasssement ol evonts ofter the balonce sheot date, the Entity has considered and concheded that no material events haevw
ocourred resulting in pdjustments to the financial statemants,
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(1) HSBC (HSBC Custody Services (Guernsey) Limited)
11 4,000,000 624
HSBC 25
25799 GY1 3NF
HSBC
HSBC
(2) HSBC (HSBC Bank plc, Guernsey Branch)
HSBC 11 797 1,207 9,332
HSBC
(3) HSBC (HSBC Continental Europe)
11 491 630 4,931
(4) HSBC (HSBC Private Bank (Suisse) SA)
11 708 872 6100
2021 11 30 UFJ
123.25
(5) HSBC (HSBC Securities Services (Guernsey)
Limited)( )

11 2,600,000 ( 9,406 )
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(6) HSBC

11 602,000 ( 9,124

E14 5HQ

(7) HSBC
HSBC Securities Services (lreland) DAC

11 2.5 321
HSBC
HSBC
2,976,005
(8) HSBC ( HSBC )
11 197 7,500
® ( )(
11 116,102,479,495
8,189 1,646
11 30
14.59

(10)

11 781
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(HSBC Alternatire Investments Limited)(

1,377

11 29

30

7,198,000,000



(1) HSBC

(
1987

(2) HSBC
Branch)
HSBC

(3) HSBC
HSBC

(4) HSBC
HSBC

(5) HSBC
Limited)(

(6) HSBC

(7) HSBC

(Ireland) DAC

(8) HSBC

)

(10)

TA

TA
TA
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(HSBC Custody Services (Guernsey)Limited)

(HSBC Bank plc, Guernsey

TA

(HSBC Continental Europe)

(HSBC Private Bank (Suisse) SA)

(HSBC Securities Services (Guernsey)

(HSBC Alternative Investments Limited)(

)(

)(
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HSBC
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1988
1908
1946

1988 1987 1987 1987
1987

1987

1987 1987 1987

1987

1987
1987

1987

1994

2008 10 29 1987
1959 1989
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COBO
1987
1987
2007 POI COBO
COBO
2013 27 COBO 2013
2008 10 29 1987
POI
2002 2003
HM
2008 11 24 2008
2014 2013
1990
1998
2008 10 29 POl COBO 1987
2008 12 15 2008
ACEIS 2018 RCIS
2018 2009 30 RCIS
2008 12 15 COBO
ACEIS 1987
ACEIS 6.02
2018
2018 ACEIS
1987
2016 11 PIF
PIF PIF
50 PIF
PIF

PIF
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13
14 1987

1987

1987

15

GFA

APA  APB APQ
3,435
2016 2010
2017 2010 16

1987

1987
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2010 16 FNCC

100 2007
30

2008
1987

2008 30

162/191



EDINETOOOO
O00oDOoO0oooooooo0oooooOo(EsLss)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2008

2008
2008 30
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2.14(1)(b)
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2.13
2.13
2.14(1)(b)
2.12
1987
4.03
6.02
6.02
6.02
2.10
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1987 27

1987

30

30

750

21

8.06
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HSBC

12
SOFR 3.5 ()
ESTR 3.5 ()
LIBOR 2021 12 31
2022
2021 12 31
LIBOR
100.00
100.00
11 59
(
( )
11 59
(
( )
25,000
25,000
5,000
1.75 10
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AHL (Cayman) SPC

CTA

AHL Partners LLP

Tewksbury Investment Fund Ltd.

Stevens Capital Management LP

Systematica Alternative Markets Fund Limited

Systematica Investments Limited
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1987 2013
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FRS 102
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Independent Auditor's Report to the Unitholders of HSBC Trading AdvantEdge Fund
Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position
of HSBC Trading AdvantEdge Fund (the “trust”) and its subsidiary (together “the Fund”) as at 31 July 2021, and of
their consolidated financial performance for the year then ended in accordance with United Kingdom Accounting
Standards, comprising FRS 102, “The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland"
(“FRS 102" and have been properly prepared in accordance with the provisions of the Trust Deed.

What we have audited
The Fund's consolidated financial statements comprise:

the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 July 2021;

the consolidated statement of total return for the year then ended;

the consolidated statement of changes in net assets attributable to the unitholders of the Fund for the year
then ended; and

the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which include the significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (“ISAs”). Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial
statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Fund in accordance with the International Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants
(including International Independence Standards) issued by the Ethics Standards Board for Accountants (“IESBA
Code”) and with SEC Independence Rules. We have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
the IESBA Code.

Other information

The manager is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises all the information included
in the Annual Report and Audited Consolidated Financial Statements but does not include the consolidated
financial statements and our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information identified above and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the manager for the consolidated financial statements

The manager is responsible for the preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with United Kingdom Accounting Standards, comprising FRS 102, the provisions of the Trust
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Deed, and for such internal control as the manager determines is necessary to enable the preparation of

consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the manager is responsible for assessing the Fund's ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the manager either intends to liquidate the Fund or to cease operations, or has
no realistic alternative but to do so.
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Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Fund'’s internal control.

e FEvaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the manager.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of the manager's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on
the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Fund's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Fund to cease to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

e Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business

activities within the Fund to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for

the direction, supervision and performance of the Fund audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

Use of this report

This independent auditor's report, including the opinion, has been prepared for and only for the unitholders as a
body in accordance with Paragraph 4.02(3) of The Authorised Collective Investment Schemes (Class B) Rules
2013 and the Trust Deed and for no other purpose. We do not, in giving this opinion, accept or assume
responsibility for any other purpose or to any other person to whom this report is shown or into whose hands it may
come save where expressly agreed by our prior consent in writing.

PricewaterhouseCoopers Cl LLP
Chartered Accountants
Guernsey, Channel Islands
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Date: 22 November 2021

The maintenance and integrity of the Fund's website is the responsibility of the manager; the work carried out by the auditor does not involve consideration of these
matters and, accordingly, the auditor accepts no responsibility for any changes that may have occurred to the financial statements since they were initially presented
on the website.

Legislation in Guernsey governing the preparation and dissemination of financial statements may differ from legislation in other jurisdictions.
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Independent auditor®s report to the members of HSBC Management (Guernsey) Limited

Report of the audit to the financial statements

Our opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of HSBC
Management (Guernsey) Limited (the “company”) as at 31 December 2020, and of its financial performance
and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards as adopted by the European Union and have been properly prepared in accordance with the
requirements of The Companies (Guernsey) Law, 2008, The Regulation of Fiduciaries, Administration
Businesses and Company Directors, etc (Bailiwick of Guernsey) Law, 2000 and The Protection of Investors
(Bailiwick of Guernsey) Law, 1987.

What we have audited
The company”s financial statements comprise:
the balance sheet as at 31 December 2020;
the income statement for the year then ended;
the statement of changes in equity for the year then ended;
the statement of cash flows for the year then ended; and
the notes to the financial statements, which include significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information.

Basis of opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing ("1SAs™). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor™s responsibilities for the
audit of the financial statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the company in accordance with the International Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (including International Independence Standards) issued by the International Ethics
Standards Board for Accountants (*"IESBA Code™) and with SEC Independence Rules. We have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the 1ESBA Code.

Other information

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises all the
information included in the Annual Report and Financial Statements but does not include the financial
statements and our auditor®"s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in this report.
In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information identified above and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears
to be materially misstated. IT, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in
this regard.
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Responsibilities of the directors for the financial statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the European Union,
the requirements of Guernsey law and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the company®"s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the company
or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditors” responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as awhole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor®s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with I1SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these financial statements.
As part of an audit in accordance with 1SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audit. We also:
Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting fromerror, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the company®s internal control.
Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the directors.
Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors® use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the company®s ability to
continue as a going concern. Ifwe conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor”s report to the related disclosures in the financial statementsor, if
such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor”s report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the company to cease to continue as a going concern.
Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.
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We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

Use of this report

This independent auditor”s report, including the opinions, has been prepared for and only for the
members as a body in accordance with Section 262 of The Companies (Guernsey) Law, 2008 and for no other
purpose. We do not, in giving these opinions, accept or assume responsibility for any other purpose or to
any other person to whom this report is shown or into whose hands it may come save where expressly agreed
by our prior consent inwriting.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

Under The Companies (Guernsey) Law, 2008 we are required to report to you if, inour opinion:
we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit;
proper accounting records have not been kept; or
the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records.

We have no exceptions to report arising from this responsibility.

Furthermore, we have examined the Statement of Financial Resources set out on page 20. In our opinion the
financial resources requirement specified inRule 2.2.2 of The Licensees (Capital Adequacy) 2010 Rules
has been satisfied.

PricewaterhouseCoopers CI LLP
Chartered Accountants
Guernsey, Channel Islands

30 March 2021
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